
OFICINA DEL COMISIONADO DE ASUNTOS MUNICIPALES- _..
Anea oE-asisonAMiENTo, REGLAMENTAC16N E lNTERvENcloN FlscAL

AREA DE ARcHlvo DlGlrAL

MUNICIPIO DE CiDRA
AUDITORiA 2o10-2011

30 DE JUNIO DE 2011



)

/
lipez-Vega, CPA, PSC u-/r*

Cenified Public Accountants / Managemenl Advisors )l



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WITH ADDITIONAL REPORTS AND

INFORMATION REQUIRED BY TI{E SINGLE
AUDIT ACT

YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2011

Municipallty of Cidra
P.O. Box 729 Cidm, P.F.007390729



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

BASIC FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS ACCOMPANIED BY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2011

CONTENTS

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lndependent Auditors' RePort

Required Supplementary lnformation (Part 1)

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental Funds:

Balance Sheet
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds to
Statement of Net Assets
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities

Proprietary Funds:
statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Statement of Cash Flow

Notes to Basic Financial statements

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Required Supplementary lnformation (Part ll):

Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund

Nods to Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Page

!-2

+r2

13
74

15

16

18

19
20
27

t7

57
58
59-60
61



MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ACCOMPANIED BY

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011

CONTENTS (CONTINUED)

Page

Report on internal control over financial reporting and on

compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial

statements performed in accordance with Government

Auditing Standards

lndependent Report's on compliance with requirements

applicable to each major program and on internal control over

compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133

FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS

Schedule of findings and questioned cost

Summary schedule of prior year audit findings

62-63

64-66

67-76

77-79



Ldpez-Vega,CPA, PSC

Certifled Public Accountants / Mamagemctrt Adviso.s

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
the Munlcipal Legislature
Munlcipality ol Cidra
Cidra, Puerto Rico

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of

the Munlclpality ot Cidra, Puerto Rico (Munlcipality), as of and for the year ended June 30,

2011, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility ofthe Municipality's

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements

based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the respective financial statements are free of
materlat misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the respective financial statements. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,

as well ai evaluatingthe overatl financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material

respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business type-

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the

Municipality of Cidla, Puerto Rico, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in

financial position and cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the united States of America.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the

managem;nt's discussion and analysis and the budgetary comparison schedule on pages 3

through 12 and 57 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements Such

infor;ation, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of

financial reporting for placing the basic flnancial statements in an appropriate operational,

economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required

supplementary information in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with

management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other

t<nowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements We do not

e^pr""" in opinion or provide any assurance on the information because of the limited

procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any

assurance.

MfuW,E"
San Juan, Puerto Rico
Decembet 29,2077

Stamp No. 2575521of the Puerto Rico

Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy ofthis report.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

This discussion and analysis of the Municipality oI Cidra (the lvlunicipality) financial performance

provides an overview of the lMunicipality's financial activities for the fiscal year ended on June 30,
2011. This Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying basic financial statements and the accompanying notes to those financial

statements. Besides, this document includes comparative data with prior year as this information

was available for the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2010. This NID&A is prepared in order to
comply with such pronouncement and, among other purposes, to provide the financial

statements users with the following major information:

1. a broader basis in focusing important issues;

2. acknowledgement of an overview of the lVunicipality's financial activities;

3. provides for an evaluation of its financial condition as ofthe end offiscalyear 2o7G2O71
compared with Prior Year results;

4, identification of uses of funds in the financing of the Municipality's variety of activities and;

5. assess management's abilityto handle budgetary functions.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial condition and results of operations as reflected in the financial statements prepared

for fiscal year 2011 constitute factual evidence of the lMunicipality's economic strength by the

end of such year. The following comments deserve special mention:

1. Total assets of the lvlunicipality amounted to $98,123,798 which represents an increase

of 3olo compared to prior fiscal year.

2. At the end of fiscal year 2011, total liabilities amounted to $47,669'286. Out of said

amount, $38,616,930 corresponded to long-term liabilities of which $34,445,000
represented the outstanding balance of bonds and notes issued. The Municipality

continued to meet all debt service requirements, most of which was paid from self
generated revenues.

3. Total net assets of the lvunicipality amounted to $50,454'512 which represents an

increase of 3% compared to prior fiscal year.

4. Total revenues available for the financing of activities as reflected in the Statement of
Activities amounted to $30,313,881, derived from the following sources: $313,645 from

charges for services; $5,493,325 from operating grants and contributions; $990,000 from

capital grants and contributions obtained from other sources' and $23,516,911 from
general revenues available.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

5. Total expenses incurred to afford the cost of all functions and programs as reflected in the
Statement of Activities amounted to $28,683,689.

6. As reflected in the Statement of Activities, the current fiscal year operations contributed to
an increase in the Net Assets figure by $1,630,192.

7. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the lr,lunicipality's Governmental Funds reported
combined endingfund balances of $14,052,358.

8. ln the fund financial statements, the governmental activities revenue increased $553,430
(or 2%); nevertheless governmental activities expenditures decreased $1,710,196 (or
6vol.

9. As the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's general fund balance amounted to
$54,546 compared to a fund balance of $60,829 in the prior fiscal year.

10.The actual General Fund budgetary activities resulted in an unfavorable balance of
($696,239).

FUNDAMENTALS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PRESENTATION

The new approach used in the presentation of the financial statements of the Municipality is
based on a government-wide view of such statements as well as a presentation of individual
funds behavior during fiscal yeat 2017. The combination of these two perspectives provide the
user the opportunity to address significant questions concerning the content of said financial
statements, and provide the basis for a comparable analysis of future years performance. The
comparative analysis is a meaningful and useful management tool for municipal management in
the decision making process.

Under the aforementioned approach, assets and liabilities are recognized using the accrual basis
of accounting which is similar to the method used by most private enterprises. This means that
current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for regardless of when cash is received or
paid.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS COMPONENTS

The basic financial statements consist of the government wide financial statements, the major
funds financial statements and the notes to the financial statements which provide details,
disclosure and description of the most important items included in said statements.

The Statement of Net Assets reflects information of the Nlunicipality as a whole on a consolidated
basis and provides relevant information about its financial strength as reflected at the end of the
fiscalyear.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the focus

from previous financial statements. The new focus is on both the lvunicipality as a whole

(govemment-wide) and the major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide and

;ajor fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to
yei, ol. goretnrent to government) and enhance the Municipality's accountability'

GOVERNMEMENT - WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Government-wide Financial statements are designed to provide users of the financial

statements with a broad overview of the Municipality's finances in a manner similar to private-

sector companies.

The statement of Net Asset presents information on all of the Municipality's assets and liabilities,

withthedifferencebetweenbothreportedasnetassets.overtime,increasesordecreasesin
net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the N4unicipality is

improving or deteriorating.

TheStatementofActivitiespresentsinformationShowinghowthelvunicipality,snetassets
changed duringthe most recent fiscalyear. All changes in net assets are reported assoon asthe

undeilying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash

flows. Tlius, revenuet and expenses are reported in the Statement of Activities that will only

result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. The statement of Activities is focused on both the

gross and net cost of various activities, which are provided by the government's general tax and

ither revenues. This is intended to summarize and simplify the user's analysis of cost of various

governmental services.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's most

.igniti"rnt funds, not the lvlunicipality as a whole. The lMunicipality has only one kind of fund

which is the governmental fund.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as

lovernmental activities in the Government Wide Financial Statements However' unlike the

[overnment Wide Financial Statements, Government Fund Financial Statements, focus on near

term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources

available at the end of the fiscal year, such information is useful in evaluating the lMunicipality's

near term financial requirements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide financial

statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar

information presented for governmental activities in the government wide financial statements.
By doing so, users of the basic financial statements may better understand the long-term impact

of the Municipality's near term financial decisions. Both of the Governmental Fund Balance

Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund

Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmenta I activities.

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

Historically, a government's largest group of assets (infrastructure-roads, bridges, underground
pipes lunless associated with a utility], etc.) have not been reported nor depreciated in

government financial statements. GASB 34 requires that these assets be valued and reported

within the Governmental column of the Government-Wide Statements. Additionally, the
government must elect to either (a) depreciate these assets over their estimated useful life or (b)

develop a system of asset management designed to maintain the service delivery potential to
near perpetuity. lf the government develops the asset management system (the modified

approach) which periodically (at least every third year), by category, measures and demonstrated

its maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may record its

cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. The information about the condition and

maintenance of condition of the government infrastructure assets should assist financial

statement users in evaluating a local government and its performance over time.

According to the requirements of GASB 34, the government must elect to either (a) depreciate the
aforementioned assets over their estimated useful life or (b) develop a system of asset

management designed to maintain the service delivery to near perpetuity. lf the government

develops the asset management system, (the modified approach) which periodically (at least

every three years), by category, measures and demonstrate its maintenance of locally established

levels of service standards, the government may record its cost of maintenance in lieu of
depreciation. ln this particular respect, the Municipality has elected the use of recognizing

depreciation under the useful life method and it contemplates to continue this treatment on said

basis.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE

Net Assets

The Statement of Net Assets serves as an important indicator of the Municipality's financial
position at the end of the fiscal year. ln the case of the Municipality oI Cidia, primary government

assets exceeded total liabilities by $50,425,334 at the end of 2011, as compared with

$48,795,142 as restated which reflect an increase of $1,630,192 over previous fiscalyear. The

following condensed Statement of Net Assets of the Primary Government shows on a comparative

basis the most important components of the $1,630,192 increase reflected in the Net Assets

figure. 
6



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
rrlUNlClPAL|W OF CIDRA

MANAGENTENT'S DTSCUSSTON AND ANALYStS - (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Condensed S'Etemenl of Net ls6€ts
Cure.t and other a$ets

conent and other riabihies

lnveded in capitalasets, net of rerated

m11 2010 Ch8nge

$ 22,A80.428
75,243,3TO

$ 20,324,044
74.962,660

$ 2,556,384
24O,710

13%

t%

3%

5%

(s%)

(3%)

94.f3,794 95,246,704 2,437.O94

9,052,356
34,6.46,10a

9,514,749
36,976,773

462,433
(1,669,335)

47,694.464 46,491,562 (7,206,9021

37,744,3TO

$,964,634
(1,331,670)

45,077,661
11,007,343

1,249,a62)

0.249,291)
2,96!.29!
5,958,192

(16%)

27%

a2%

$ 50,425,334 $ 4a,795,142 $ 1,630.192

100,000,000

80,000,000

60,000,000

40,000 000

20 000,000

t2011 12010
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPATITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Assets

The lMunicipality's net assets increase by $1,630,192. Approximately fifty nine percent (59%) of
the Nlunicipality's total revenue came from taxes, while thirty-seven percent (37%) resulted from
grants and contributions, including federal aid. Charges for Services provided one percent (17o),
lnterest and lnvestment earnings (1%) and miscellaneous (2o/a) of lotal revenues. The
Municipality's largest expenses included items such as general government, health and welfare
services, public works, community development and public safety. The following table and
graphic presentation includes in absolute and relative terms, the composition of revenues and
expenses for the fiscal years ended on June 30, 2010 and 2011. Such analysis helos the reader
to evaluate the N4unicipal administration performance in the administration of its current financial
operations.

Condalr3€d $aiement of Artivities

0pe6ting g6nts and coniributions

Cap(al gEntsand@nt butions

Municipalsl6 and use tax

G6nts and contrlbuuons not restricted to

lnteresi and investment eamings

Culture and recreation

Economic development

communnydevelopment

lderest on long-tem debt

Net assets, begnning or year (as r6tated)

Net asseb, end of year

2ott 2OLO Chan8s

$ 313,645

5,493,325

990,000

4,241,739

1.664,466

4,124,976

4,479,503

266,566

339.661

$ 358,763

5,659,421

2.517,@7

7,306,430

1,642,240

4,055,675

3,467,434

192,924

240,345

(45,118)

(166,496)

11,527.607)

935,309

22,226

69,301

1,411,669

73.642

99,316

(13%)

(3%)

(61%)

13%

a%

3a%

3%

(36%)

5%

37%

9%

26%

26%

39%

69%

7%

3o,313,aa1 29,447,639 472,242

3,341,539

(82,346)

(2394,444)

(224,564)

1,075,599

173,221t

(705,131)

(6,087)

(83,711)

13,067,259

1,522,506

4,142,653

2.249,515

5,175,649

246,547

1,103,631

2,741

1,173,142

9.6,!9,720

1,604,852

6,541.137

2,5!4.043

4,100,050

279,7@

1,aoa,762

8.834

1256,a93

2a,683,649 27,764,O99 (3%)

(1%)1,630,192

4A,795.142

1,677,540

4T,117,602

(1a,170)

1,677,540
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS . (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAT ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOTE (CONTINUED)

Revenues 2011

Expenses 2011

r Charges for services

r Operating grants and

contributions
r Capitalgrants and contributions

r Municipalsales and use tax

i Mu nicipal license tax

r Grants and contributions not

restricted to spe€ific programs

r lnterest and inv€stment earnings

. General government

r culture and recreation

r Comnunity development

. H€alth and welfare
r lnterest on long-term debt

. Economic Development
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS' (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance

with finance related legal requirements'

Govelnmental Funds

The focus of the Municipality s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows'

"r,ff"*", 
,"J tatances ot-spenoable resources' Such information is useful in assessing the

rr/lr"[lpiritvs financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a

,a"tut 
'r"""rr" of a g;vernment's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal

year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined

"nO-i"i 
frrJ b;lances of $14,052,358, an increase of $2,950,888 in comparison with the prior

v""i. ?n"i" "* ieservations of fund balance amounting b $14,047'752' The combined fund

Liiances lnctuoe restricted fund balance amounting to $13,889,325. This is the portion of fund

oitance trat reflects resources that are subject to externally enforceable legal restrictions 1) to

;;;r;;;;iil;;;;;,m purposes ($+,06e'g'eo); z) to pa1, ror capitar proiects ($5'088'203); 3)to

I"i, O-"ni ."J",j" tI tSlt,iZZl.tiere are committed fund balance amounting to $1O8,487 that

iii onfy Oe ,sed pursrant to constraint formally imposed by thef\4unicipal Legislature by

oioinuna". and resolutions to pay for specific programs purpose' There are assigned fund

o"]"".""1r""*i.C to $43,940 that represent resources for specific purposes but do not meet

the definition to be classified as restricted or committed (generally executive orders approved by

the Mayor) to pay for specific programs purposes'

Within the governmental funds, it is included the general fund which is the chief operating fund of

irr" rr,l*i"i-p"riV. As of June 30, 2011, the ge;eral fund has an unassigned fund balance of

$10,606

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During fiscal yeat 2O7O'2O77, the lvunicipal Legslature,approved revisions to the operational

;;;;& il;t *;;p;pared in accordance to the analysis of previous year's results Despite of the

[uL-n"" nuOg"t, tn" expected amounts of revenues were not collected' as reflected in exhibit'

irJg"tiry co-rputi"on 6cheduleGeneral Fund attached here to The l'4unicipality of cidra current

v""tTpLr"tion t,rO 
" 

deficiency of revenues over expenses of ($ 696 239)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The Municipality's investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2011, amounted to $106,365,658
which upon deduction of accumulated depreciation in the amount of $37,122'2aA produced a

net book value attributable to capital assets in the amount of $75'243'370, Said investment

includes land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure,

furnishing, computers and vehicles. lnfrastructure assets are composed of items such as roads,

bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items'

The total increase in the lvunicipality's investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year

representedapproximatelyonepercent(1%)ofnetbookvaiue.Depreciationchargesforlheyear
totaled $2,491,794.

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through bond or notes

issuances. The proceeds from bond and notes issuances designated for construction activities

are committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes As of

June 30, 2011, the Municipality has $4,225,L37 of proceeds from bond and notes issuances

and other restricted assignments that are mainly committed to future construction activities in

the Capital Project Fund- Local, State and Federal Grants.

Debt Administration

The puerto Rico Legislative Assembly has established a limitation for the issuance of general

obligation municipal bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit and taxing

pow-erofeachmunicipalitymaybepledged,Theapplicablelawalsorequiresthatinorderfora
i\4unicipality to be able to issue additional general obligation bonds and notes, such Municipality

must have sufficient "payment capacity" as defined in Act No' 64 Such Act requires a

lVUnicipalitymusthassufficient,.paymentcapacity,toincuradditionalgeneralobligationdebtif
itsdepositsintheRedemptionFundandtheannualamountscollectedwithrespecttosuch
Municipality's Special Additional Tax (as defined below), as projected by GDB, is sufficient to

ServicetomaturitytheMunicipality,soutstandinggeneralobligationdebtandtheadditional
proposed general obligation debt.

The lvunicipality is required under prevailing applicable law to levy a Special Additional Tax in

such amounts is shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal bonds and

notes. ln addition, principal of and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds and notes

andonallmunicipalnotesissuedinanticipationoftheissuanceofgeneralobligationbonds
issued by the Municipality constitute a first lien on the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues'

Accoroinily, ihe lvunicipaiity's Basic Tax revenues would be available to make debt service

paymenti-on general obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special

laiitionat tax l-evieO by th; Municipatity, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's

Redemption Fund, are not sufficient to cover such debt service. ln the particular case of the

Municipality of Cidra, it has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pay debt service on

general obligation debt of the Municipality.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXI YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal and state
grants to carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have
been very predictable with increases of approximately five percent. Federal and State grant
revenues may vary if new grants are available, but the revenue can be also predictable. Those
factors were considered when preparing the Municipality's budget for the fiscal yeat 2077-2072

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer,
customers, investors and creditors) with a general overview of the lMunicipaiity's finances and to
demonstrate the lMunicipality's accountability. lf you have questions about the report or need
additional financial information, contact the l\4unicipality's Chief Financial Officer.

L2



Commonwealth of Pueto Rico

Municipality oI Cidra

Statement of Net Assets

lune 30. 2011

Primary Govemment

Governmental

Activitles

BusinesgType

Activities Total

Assets
c€sh and cash equivalenG

Land, improvements and construction in progress

Euitdings, infrasvuture and oiher epital assets,

Total capital asseG

Totalassets

Llabilities
Accounts payable and acctued liabilities

Oue to other governmental entities

Municipal license tax

Fede€lgrant @venues

oue in more tnan oneyear

Totalllabilities

Net Assets
lnvested in capital asets. net of related debt

Total net as6ets

12,667,243
9,961,469

1,362
154,244

23,833,545

45,010,484

95,710 72,762,953
9,961469

\,362
L54,244

24,433,545

50.409,825

600,000

5,799,337
6a,a44,033 6,399,337 75.243,3T0

9!,628,751 6,495,047 98,123,794

1,237,909
2!2,O39

7,260,454
21,956

1,956,754
30,694,350

319,996

346,000
5,649,000

1,237,909
212,039

7,260,456
21,956

319,996

2,302,758
36,343,350

41,383.468 6.314,996 47,694,464

37344,033

5,084,203
4,731,732
4,177,477

444.337 37,78A,370

5,088,203
4,73L732
4,L77,877

(1,360,844)(1,136,562) 1224,286)

1aO,O51 50,425,33454,245,2a3

The notes io iho financial siaiemenls are an iniegralPan ol this staiement.



commonwealth 6f Puerio Ricd

Mun icipality of CidE
statement of Aclivities

For the Year Ended lune 30,2011

GEGatrdusbnoEdtsddb@n.pD@fu

The notes to the financialstateme.ts are an integralpart of this natement. !4



Commonwealth of Puerto Rtco
Municipality of Cidra

Balanc.Sheet
Govehmentat Funds

June30,2011

Frndlot)
Fundt2o & 21)

Fund 11oe u)

Dw ro ober grcmm.dd $rk
t 7456s r 61,279

rcg'e14'0'353

Ttre nol6s ro the tinanciat siatemenG arc an inteod pan ot inis stalehenl. 15



Commonweatrh of puerto Rico
Mun icipaltry of Cidra

Slatement of Reven ues, ftpendituresand Changes in Fund Batances
coyernmentat Funds

For tne Year Ended.,une 30,2011

rund.(01)

q.ibrPDjd
Fundl2o&21)

Flnd<rcau) s6r. & FdcE c,6n6

El6 (&6cienq) d @nu6 €

orEr nmndil sulE (u€)

rodturfinandngeuBl66)

fund h.bne, bgii ne.s BbH

(519,e4{r) 1L934,2D)

(4€6,435) (3O,0Oo)

1'G,0i)03,035,€.0
15,0oo)

513,5552,931,9.{0

G,2a3)

. t 51,5.6

L\\'.51ri"
' ,.i\i1.\'' \uv

(.{76,662)

436435

1554,390) (1070,325)

60.326

l 4,731732 t

Tne noles to $e ,inanci.r stabm€.rs arc an inbgd pan ot ftis slatemenr 16



Commonweatth of Puerto Rlco
l\lunlcipatity of Cidrc

Reconclllatlon or the Batanc€ Sheet - covernmenrat Funds
to the Slatement of Net AsseG

For lhe Year Ended June 30,2011

_ Totat Fund Batances- Gdemment.t Fund! S 14,0S2,35a

! amou.ts reported for Golernmentat Activ ties in the starement of Net a$ets
are diflerenr becaus:

capilaiassts ued in govern menia I aciv ties are nol f nanciat eources and therefore,
are not repoted in thetunds. tn the.urent Deriod, th6e amounrs are:

- Non Depreciab e CaDitatAssets

Depreiabte Capital A$ets
cufr utated oepreciation

Totat capitat ass*s

Sone tiabiliri6 are not dle and payabte n ihe clrenr period and therefore, are not
reported tnthe funds. Those tiabirities consist of:

$ 23,a33.545
75,€3,934

13o,773,446)

24,450,000

50,580

29,778
3,450,350

671,000

Ge.e6lBonds and Notes Payab e

ComDensted Absenc6

64,444,033

(32,651,10a)Totat Long,Term Liabitities

- Toral Net As*t5 ol giovernmentat acivitiE $ 50,245,2a3

The noles tothe linanciat stalements are an inlegratpart otthis statement. 17



Commonwealth of pueno Rico
Munictpality of Cidra

Reconcjliatjon of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditurcs, and Changes in Fund Balances of

Governmenta I Funds to the Statement ofActivities
Forthe Year Ended June 30,2011

Net Change ln Fund Batances , Tolat covernme.rat Funds

Amounts repoded for govemmentat activities in the Statement ofActivities are difierent bemuse:

Govemmental Funds feporr capitar oulats as expenditures. Howevef, in the covernmertwide statement o,
Activities and changes in Net dsets, the cost of those assets is alocated over their estimated usefur rives as
depreciation expense, This is the amount of capftat assets recorded intnecunent period.

capital asets received as a donalion are not recorded in the covernmentar Funds, bec€use curent rnanciar
nor i.volved; however, rhe tran$ction must be reflected in rhe Government_Wide Financial

statements based on the fair varue ofthe donated propertv. This is rhe amounr ofdonated capitarass€ts recorded
in the curent p€riod.

Depreciation expense on capitarassets is reported in the covernment.wide statements of Activities and change io
Net Assets, butthey do not require the use of curent financiat resources. Therefore, depreciation expense 6 not
reported as expenditlres in Governmentat Funds.

Disposar of epitar assets requne removar of cost of rhe capitar assets from the capiiar asser account on the
Govemme.t Wide Srabment of Net Assets, resutting in a toss on dispost o, capitat assets on the Govemmenr
wide statemenr of Activities and cha.ge tn Net assets.

Bonds and nots proceeds pfovide curent linanciat resources to covernmentat Funds. Reparnent of bonds and
notes principar is an expenditure in covernmentar Funds, but the repayment reduces rong,term riabirities in the
Government Wide Srabment of Net Assets. This isthe amountfor debtseryice pnncipat payrnenrs.

Ihe issuance of long-term debt provides curre nnanciat resources ro covemmentat Fuds, white the repayment
of pnncipalof tongierm debt @nsumes curent firanciatresources. This is the amounttor debl proceeds.

some expenses reported in rhe statement o, Activfties do not requirethe use of curent inanciar resourc* and
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in covernmentat Funds,

Repayment of long term Land hfomation Management Srstem (L|MS) debt is an expenditLrre in covernmentat
Funds, butthe repavment reduces rong tem LrMS debt in the covernmenrwide statement of Net assets. This is
the amount paid in the curent period.

Change in tandfitt accruat

ronglerm @mp€nsated absencs are reponed in the Govemment wide staGment of activities and changes in
Net lssets, but they do not require the use of cufrent nnanciat resources, Iherefore, tong term compensated were
.ot reported as expenditures in Govemmentat Funds. The folowing amount represents the change in tongtem
compensated absences from pnor year.

ch.nge ln Net As.sets of Govemmentat a.iivi *

2,950,a88

2,379,706

724,445

(2,293,090)

F4,424)

1,155,000

(4,040,000)

309,040

96,a16

47,O00

457,a09

$ 1,733,186

The notes to the nnanciat statements are an irtegrat pa d of rhis statement, 18



Commonweath ol Puerto Rico

lvtunicipality of Cidm
statement of Net Ass€ts

Proprl€tary Fund-BusinessType Activity, EnteD se Fund

Year Ended lune 30, 2011

Ausiness Type

Enteerise

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

tand
Building

IVachineryand equipment

Accumulated depreciation

Total nonrurrent assets

Liabilities:

Corrent Llablllties:

HUD Section 108 Loans Guarantee-Principal

Total currcnt liabilities

Noncurent Llabiliti€s:

Long Term Liabilities:

HIJD Section 108 Loan Guarantee

Total noncurrent liabilities

Totalliabilities

lnvested in capitalassets, net of related debt

95,710

95,710

600,000
6,576,754

17L,425
,94a,a42)

6,399,337

6,495,047

346,000
319,996

665,996

5,649,000

5,649,000

6,314,996

404,331

Q24,2461,

_i____l!g!F

The not6 to rhe financ al statements aG an intedrar pan ot $is siaiement 19



Commonwealth of Pueno Rico

Municipality olCidra
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Fund- BusinessType Activity - Enterprise Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2011

ToG operating revenues

Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenditures

0pelating income (Loss)

No.-ope6ting rcvenuG (expenses):

Payments-Prlncipa|HUD Section 104 Loan

Total ron{pelau ng rcvenues (expenses)

lncome (loss) betore tlansfels

Transfers trom Govern mental Activities

Total net assets beginning as restated

Total net assets€nding

95,710

95,710

198,704

194,704

(102,994)

(250,000)

{334,390)

(584,390)

(687,384)

584,390

(102,994)

243,O45

The notes 1o the nnanc alstatements a@ an integElpartofthisstatemenr 20



Commonwealth of puerto Rico
Munlclpalily of Ctdra

Statement of Cash Ftows
Prop etary Fund - Business Type Activtty - Enterprise Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2011

C€sh Flows from OperatlnE Activifles:

Receipts from Customers

Ner Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Caoital and Retated Financinr Acflvtties:

Prjncipal paid on capitat debt
lntercstpaid
Transfer rn lrom lhe Governmentat Activiues

Net Cash Provided (t sed) in Capitatand Retated FtnancingActivities

Balance-beginning of the year as restated

Balance-end ofthe year

Reconciliation ofOoeratine tncome ro Net Cash provided rus€d) bv
Ooeratind Activltles:

Operating loss

Adjustments to Reconcite Operating tncometo Net Cash used by Operating Activitiesl

Depreciation expenses

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by OperatingActivtties

Noncash Investing cspital and flnancingacivities:

95,710

95,710

(250,000)
(334,390)

584.390

95,710

$ (102,994)

194,704

79A,704

95,710

The nots to the r nancia statemenrs are an integratpad ofthis statement. 2L



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Municipality of Cidra (the Municipality) was founded on the year 1917. The
N4unicipality's governmental system consists of an executive and legjslature body, lt is
governed by a N4ayor and a sixteen member Municipal Legislature *ho ar" elected for a
four-year term,

The l\,lunicipality provides public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and
welfare, urban development, education, economic development, and other miscellaneous
services.

The basic financial statements of the lvunicipality have been prepared in conformity with
Generally Accepted Accounting principles as applied to local governmental units in the
United States of America (US GMp).

ln June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
34, 'Basic Financial Statements and Management,s and Discussion and Analysjs for State
and Local Governments." This Statement, known as the Reporting lvlodel, provides for the
most significant change in financial reporting for state and local governments in over 20
years and affects the way the lMunicipality prepares and presents financial information. The
Statement was adopted as of July 1, 2002. tn addition to this Statement, GASB Statement
No. 37, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State
and Local Governments: Omnibus" and GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial
Statement Note Disclosures" have been adopted and are reflected in these financial
statements.

As part of this Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the capitalization
of local government infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.). This requirement
permits an optional four-year delay for implementation to fiscal year ended on June 30,
2007. The l\iluniclpality implemented the capitalization of infrastructure since July 1,
2002.

ln March 2009, the N4unicipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.55, Ihe
Hierarchy of Genera y Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments
(GASB No. 55), and GASB Statement No. 50 Cod,ficatio, of AccountinE and Financial
ReportinE Guidance Contained in the AICPA Statements on Auditing Standards (GASB No.
56).

GASB No. 55 incorporated the hierarchy of USGMP for state and local governments into the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) authoritative literature. The
requirements in this Statement codify all USGMP for state and local governments so that
they derive from a single source.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLTCIES (CONTINUED)

GASB No. 56 incorporated into the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB)

authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance presented in the
American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants' Statements on Auditing Standards. This
Statement addressed three issues not included in the authoritative literature that
establishes accounting principles-related party transactions, going concern considerations,
and subsequent events.

ln the current year, the l\4unicipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54,
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB No. 54), which
modified the interpretations of certain terms within the definition of the special revenue
funds and the types of activities the Nlunicipality may choose to report in those funds. GASB

No. 54 also clarified the capital projects fund type definition for better alignment with the
needs of preparers and users. Definitions of other governmental fund types were also
modified for clarity and consistency.

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the Municipality:

A. Component Units

ln evaluating how to define the Municipality for financial reporting purposes, management
has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential

component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of Statement
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, of the GASB, as amended by the GASB Statement
No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units an
amendment of GASB Statement 14". The basic, but not the only criterion for including a
potential component unit within the reporting entity is if elected officials of a primary
government are financially accountable for the entity. Financial accountability exists if
the primary governmental appoints a voting majority of the entity's governing body, and if
either one of the following conditions exist: the primary government can impose itswillon
the other entity or the potential exists for the other entity to (1) provide specific financial
benefitstoor(2) impose specific financial burdens onthe primary government. Asecond
criterion used in evaluating potential component units is if the nature and significance of
the relationship between the entity and a primary government are such that to exclude
the entity from the financial reporting entity would render the financial statements
misleading or incomplete. Based on the above criteria, the Nlunicipality does not have

component units to include within its reporting entity.

23



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOUCtES (CONTTNUED)

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

Financial information of the Nlunicipality is presented in this report as follow:

1. l\4anagement's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and
provides an analytical overview of the l\4unicipality,s financial activities.

2. The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information on a[ the activities of the Municiparity and
its component units, if any. covernmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from businesstypi
activities, if any, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
lnterfund activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the duplicating
effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment is offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that
are charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or direc y benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or ca[ital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

3. Fund financial statements focus on information about the N4unicipality,s major
governmental funds. lvlajor individual governmental funds are reported as separite
columns in the fund financiat statements. pursuant to the provisions set forth by GASB
No. 54, the lvlunicipality reported the following governmental funds in the
accompanying GFFS:

ceneral Fund (01) - is the Nlunicipality main operating fund used to account for and
report all financial and reported resources and governmental activities, except for
those required to be accounted for in another fund. lt is presumed that the
l\4unicipality's governmental activities have been reported in the general fund except
for transactions for which one of the following compelling reasons hls required the use
of another fund: (1) tegat requirements, (2) USGMP requirements or (3) the demands
of sound financial administration requiring the use of a governmental fund other than
the general fund. lts revenues consist mainly of taxes, licenses and permits,
intergovernmental, charges for services and other.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SrcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (coNTtNUED)

Special Revenue Funds-State and federal grants (O2) _ is a major governmental fund
used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
trusts for individuals, private organizations, or other governments or for major capital
projects) that are legally restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes
other than debt service or capitar projects. Resources restricted or committed to
expenditure for purposes normally financed from the general fund are generally
accounted for in the general fund provided that all applicinte legal requirements can
be appropriatery satisfred and the use of speciar revenue funds i! not required unress
they are legally mandated.

Debt service Fund (10 & 11)-is a major governmentar fund used to account for and
report for the accumulation of financial resources that are restricted for, and thepayment of, principal and interest for: (1) bonds payable for which debt service
payments are legally mandated to be accounted for in a debt service fund and (2)
certain special long-term obligations for which the Nlunicipality is been accumulating
financial resources in advance to pay principal and interest payments maturing i;
future years.

The outstanding balance of certain general long_term obligations for which debt
service payments do not involve the advance accumulatio;of resources (such as
certain notes payable, obligations under capital leases, accrued compensateJ
absences, Iandfjll obligation, claims and judgments, net pension liability and other
Iong-term obligations) are only accounted for in the accompanying statement of net
assets. The debt servjce payments of such obligations are gen;rally accounted for inthe governmental fund which accounted for the financial resources used for the
payment of such debts. principal and interest due on July 1 of the following fiscal year
are accounted for as a fund liability, if resources are available as of June 30 for its
payment.

capital ProjecG Funds (20 & 21) - is a major governmentar fund used to account for
and report financial resources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for
capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of major capital faciljties,
including those ou ays financed by the general obligation bond ;roceeds (other than
those financed by proprietary funds or in trusi funds tor'inOiviOuits, privaie
organizations, or other governments). The use of the capital projects funds has been
limited to only for major capital acquisitions, construction o; improvement activities
that would distort fjnancial resources trend data if not reported separately from the
other N4unicipality's operating activities. The routine purchases of minor c;pitalizable
assets (such as furniture, office equipment, vehicles and other minor capital assets or
improvements) have been reported in the governmentar fund from which financiar
resources were used for the payment.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOUCtES (coNTtNUED)

The other governmental funds of the Municipality account for grants and other
resources whose use is restricted to a particular purpose.

4. Proptielary Fund rypes focus on report any activities for which a fee is charged toexternal users for good or services. The N4unicipality repons the following propiietary
fund:

Enterprlsg Fund - lhe Enterprise Fund, which was estabtished in April 2007, is used toaccount for operations (1) that are financed and operated in a simirar manner asprivate business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs(expenses, inctuding depreciation) of providing gooO:s anO iervices to the general
public on a continuing basis, are financed or recovered primary through uses, charges;
or (2) where the governing body has decjded that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital malntenance,
public policy, accountability, or other purpose. The enterprise fund of the lvlunicipality
includes land and buildings known as,,Hotel Treasure lsland,, located in "Ave. Las
Americas, Bayam6n at Cidra, puerto Rico. The source of income comes from rent
received from rent received from facility of .Hotel Treasure lsland".

5. The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user,s
understanding of the basic financial statements.

6. Required supplementary jnformation such as the budgetary comparison schedulegeneral fund and other types of data required by GASB.

7. Notes to the budgetary comparison schedule.general fund.

C. Financial reponing presentation

The accounts of the Municipality are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
consjdered a separate accounting entity, and discrete presentations of enterprise fund.
The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self_balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures.

Government has established the following fund categories, fund types, account group and
discrete presentation of enterprise fund;

Governme ntal Fund Tvpes

Genera, Furd - ls the general operating fund of the lvunicipality. lt is used to account
for all governmentar activity, except those required to be accounied for in another fund.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Speclal Revenue Fund - Local and State Grants _ Special Revenue Funds are used toaccount for revenues derived from local funds, state grants or oth;r restricted revenuesources. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified byMunicipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Speclal Revenue Fund - Section g - Special Revenue Funds are used to account forrevenues derived from section g choice voucher program. The uses and limitations ofeach special revenue fund are specified by Municipailty ordinances or federal and state
statutes.

Speclal Revenue Fund - Federal Granb _ Special Revenue Funds are used to accountfor revenues derived from federal grants. The uses and timiiations of each special
revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Capital Projecb Furd - State and Federal Grarts _ Capital projects Fund are used toaccount for financial resources used for the acquisition or const;uction of major capital
facilities.

Debt Service Fund - Debt Service Fund are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for and the payment of, general long_term debt principal, interest, and related
costs,

Special Revenue Fund - Other Federal Grants _ Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for revenues derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each
special revenue fund are specified by l\4unicipality ordinances or federal and state
statutes.

Proprletaru Fund Tvpes

lnterprise Fund - fhe enterprise fund statements consist of State of Net Assets,
Statement of Activities and Statement of Cash Flows. This fund accounts for exchange
like transactions, like private enterprise and its operations are intended to be self
supporting through charges to users. These statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus, which concentrates on an entity or fund s net
assets,

AII transactions and events thal aff€ct the total economic resources (net assets) duringthe period are reported. The statements are reported on the furi accruar basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses recognized in
the period in which the associated liability is incurred
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COMMONWEALTI.I OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPATITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOUCtES (CONTTNUED)

D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation

Government-wide financial statements _ The accompanying GWFS are prepared usingthe economic resources measurement focus and the accr;allasis of accounting. Subjectto the additional rules and limitations detailed below, revenues (including inieresi ondeposits and investments) are generally recorded when 
""rn"j rnd expenses aregenerally recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash

flows.

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange_like
transactions are generally recorded when exchange takes place. ln exchange
transactions, each party to the transaction receives and gives up essentially equal value-s.
An exchange-like transaction is one when there is an ide;tifiable exchange and the values
exchanged, though related, may not be quite equal. The accompanying basic financial
statements include exchange-like transactions such as license feei, fines, penalties,
forfeitures, permits, charges for services, and most miscelaneous revenues, whach are
recorded as revenues when collected because they are generally not measurable until
actually received,

The Municipality groups its non-exchange transactions into the following four (4) classes
in the accompanying basic financial stalements: (a) derived tax revenues, (b) imposed
non-exchange revenues, (c) government mandated non_exchange transactions, and (d)
voluntary non€xchange transactions,

ln the case of derived tax revenue transactions, which result from assessments that the
Municipality places on exchange transactions, receivabres and revenues are recorded
when the underlying exchange has occurred.

ln the case of imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as property taxes and
municipal license taxes), which result from assessments made by the M unicipality on non_
governmental entities, including individuals, other than assessments on exchange
transaction, receivables are generally recorded in the period when an enforceable ledal
claim has arisen. Property taxes and municipal license taxes are generally recorded is
revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) in the fiscal ye;r when resources are
required to be used for the first fiscal year that the use of the resources is permitted.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPATITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOUCtES (coNTtNUED)

For government-mandated non-exchange transactions (such as intergovernmental grantsand contributions), receivabtes and re;enues 
";;;#;-il;;.;'.;u? when a, etigibilityrequirements imposed by the Drovider.,have 0"""-r",. f6, if* ,ul"rity of grants, theMunicipality must expend resources on the specific purpose or project before the providerreimburses any amounts. ,n.,:l-9lgl revenue is g"n"r"fty.r";ogni.eO as qualiryingreimbursable expenditures are incurred.

For..voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donatjons and certain grants andentitlements) receivables and revenues are generally accounted for in the same manneras government-mandated non_exchange tr"n"""tiona Oi""r"auJiOor".

Events.that are neither exchange nor non-exchange transactions are recorded when it isprobabte that a toss has been occurreO anO tne am-ouni oiio"JiJrlu-"on"ory 
""tirut"O.

lnterests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are consideredboth measurabte and avaitabte at June 30, zOff. nu""ip[ oi u.v type of revenuesources coltected in advance for use in the foitowing fi.""r yJ"i 
"r" 

LJoroed as deferredrevenues.

According to GASB No, 34, all general capital assets and the unmatured long-termtiabitities are ,recorded onty in th€ accompanyinj Stit"r"ni lt" tet nsses. memeasurement focus and the basis of accounting ,se-O in tne 
""corjunying 

GWFS differsignificanfly from the measurement focus u""o ii tt 
" 

pr"pii"tion-oi iil errs. ft,"rutor",the accompanying cFFS inctude reconcitiations, as dei"lf"J t t-n"l.."ipanying tabte ofcontents, to better identify the retationship between the GWFS u"O in"-CffS.
Government Fund Financial Statements _ The€ccompanying GFFS are reported usingthe current financial resources measurements focus and itre'moOiiieO accruat basis ofaccounting. Revenues are generally recognized as soon as ttrey url-Ou:ti ,"u"rruor" 

"noavailable. Revenues are considered to b; availabte *fr"" if,."'V ri" ."ii""tibte within thecurrent fiscal year or soon enough thereafter to pay tiautitiei ot the-iurrent fiscal year.For this purpose,.the t\4unicipatity genera y 
"on.ij"rs 

;o;l;;; (rrricipat ticensestaxes, construction excise taxes, .sales and use taxes, inte-rests on oeposits,intergovernmentat grants and contributions ,and ;;,1"; ;;;rg;; f* services) to beavailabte if co ected within sixty (60) days after June aO, ,Oli. At;r" 30,2o].t, afirevenues sources met this availability criterion.

Property taxes are all considered su.sceptible.to accrual if commonly collected within sixty(60) days foflowing the end of the fiscar period, ,nr"*t ,"r"rui 
"ir.r"r"ances 

justify agreater period.
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY oF StGNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtctEs (coNTtNUED)

Other revenue sources consldered susceptible to accrual include municjpal license taxes,sales and use taxes, construciion excise taxes, irt"r!*"rr*"rt"f grants andcontributions, interests on deposits. and. charges for au*iau"". fh"l" principal revenuesources meet both measurability and availabitit crjteria in the accompaiytng effS.
ln a manner similar to the GWFS, but subjecl to and timited by the avaitability criteriadlscussed above, arr revenues, expenses, gains, ro"se", a""es anJ [abirities resurtingfrom exchange, exchange-like transactiors 

"re "fso'ger"raffi 
lecoroeO when tneexchange takes place while all revenues, expenses, gaini, lossei, and assets resultingfrom non€xchange transactions are recorded wtren ai enrorceilie i"glt 

"lai, 
ari"es or.when att eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have t"un ,"iippri"rOfu.

lnterests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are consideredboth measurable and available at lune 30, 2011.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB lnterpretation No. 6, Recognitio n and Measurement
."I -C:!uil Liabilities and Expenditures in covernmelnta,t- rii'-iiii""t Srarements(cASBl No. 6), in the absence of an expticjt ,"qrir"r"nt-ii"., 'ii,l absence of anapplicable modification, discussed below) tne Uunicipatity genera[y accrues agovernmental fund tiabitity and expenditure (inctuding saiaries, fiiotessionat serrices,supplies, utitities, etc.) in the period in which ir," gou"inr"r,t int,i" t-n-e tiaoitity, to theextent that these tiabitities are norma,y expected t;be tiquidateO in i timety manner andin full with current avaitable financiai resources. fn" al"omp"nying ;atance Sheet -Governmentar Funds generaly refrects onry assets that witt be conv"erteo into cash tosatisry current riabirities. Long-term assets and those assets that;I n;t be convertedinto cash to satisfy current liabilities are generally not accounted for in the accompanying

Balance Sheet - covernmentat Funds. At the im" tim", rorlie_ iiJirities lgeneratty,those unmatured that wi not require the use of current financl"i ,""oril"" to puy tnuryare not accounted for in the accompanying Balance Sheet _ Governmental Funds.

The measurement focus of the GFFS is on decreases of net financial resources(expenditures) rather than expenses. l\4ost expenditures are measurabte and arerecorded when the related governmental fund liability is incurred. nitocation of cosS,such as depreciation and amortization, are recorded in tne 
"""o.panying 

Statement ofActivities, but are not recorded in the accompanying GFFS.
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MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENOED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. Assets, liabilitles and net assets

1. Cash and cash equivalents, and cash with fiscal agent- The Municipality's cash and
cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund represents special additional property

tax collections retained by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for the
payment of the lvunicipality's debt service, as established by law. Also, cash with
fiscal agent consists of unused proceeds of bonds and notes issued for the
acquisition of equipment and construction of major capital improvements.

2. Receivables and payables Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred

to as either "due tolrom other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or

"advances tofrom other funds" (i.e., the non-current ponion of interfund loans). All

other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds."

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, if any, are

offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate

that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available

financial resources.

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which

are determined, based upon past collection experience and current economic

conditions. lntergovernmental receivables in the General Fund represent mostly

contributions from the Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority, \ /hich contribute a specific
percentage of their revenues as payment in lieu of taxes' lntergovernmental

ieceivable in the special revenue fund represent amounts owed to the Municipality for

reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded programs'

3. lnventories. lnventories in the general fund is recorded as expenditure and,

consequently, the inventory is not recorded in the statement of net assets'

4. Capital assetg Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure

assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the

governmenial activities column in the governmental-wide financial statements The

flunicipality defines capital asset as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than

$25 anO an estimated useful life in excess of one year' Such assets are reported at

historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed Donated

capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation'
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. lvlajor outlays for capital assets
and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Capital assets of the Vlunicipality are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Description

Buildings and site improvements
lnfrastructure

Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment

lJsefulLife

40 years
40 years
10 years
5 years
5 years

3 to 5 years

Caoitalizatiofl threshold

$1
$1
$1
$1
$2s
$25

5. Deferred revenues. ln the GFFS, deferred revenues arises when one of the following

situations occur:

a. Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable'and "available" criteria

for revenue recognition in the current period (unavailable revenue). As previously

discussed, available is defined as due (or past due) at June 30' 2011 and

collected \/ithin 60 days thereafter to pay obligations due at June 30 ln

subsequent periods, when both criteria are met, the liability for deferred revenue

is removed and revenue is recognized.

b. The Municipality receives resources before it hasa legal claimtothem (unearned

revenue). ln subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met'

the liability for deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized'

Deferred revenues at the government-wide level arise only when the lMunicipality

receives resources before it has a legal claim to them.

6. Long-term obligations The liabilities reported in the government-wide financial

statlments included general and special obligation bonds and notes, and other long-

term liabilities, suchis vacation, sick leave, litigation, long-term liabilities to other

governmental entities and landfill closure and post closure care costs'

ln the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances

cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other

finin"lng 
"-orrce", 

*hile'bond issuance costs, \ /hether or not withheld from the actual

debt pr;eeds received, are reported as expenditures in the general fund'
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I

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

7. Compensated absenceg Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2'5 days

fer monttr up to a maximum of 60 days. Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully

vested to the employees from the first day of work All vacation pay is accrued when

incurred in the government-wide financial statements'

Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 15 days per month up to a maximum of

9o days. upon retirement, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated

and unpaid sick leave at the current rate, if the employee has at least 10 years of

service with the Municipality. All sick leave pay and salary related benefits are accrued

when incurred in the governmental-wide financial statements when the employee

meets such criteria.

8. Claims and judgmente The estimated amount of the liability for claims and

judgments, *hicf, i" dre on demand, such as from adjudicated or settled claims' is

recorded in the general fund when the liability is incurred'

9. Fund Balances- ln the current year, the Nlunicipality adopted the provisions of GASB

Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Repofting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions

(GASB No. 54), which enhanced the usefulness of fund balance information by

;roviding clear;r fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied'

inis statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy

upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds'

PursuanttotheprovisionsofGASBNo54,theaccompanyingGFFSreportfund
balance amounts that are considered restricted, committed' assigned' and

unassigneO, based on the relative strength of the constrains that control how specific

amounts can be spent, as described as follows:

a.Restricted-Representresourcesthatcanbespentonlyforthespecificpurposes"' ;il;;J oy c'onstitutionat provisions, external resource providers (externally

i.i"""O ov'creditors or grantors), or through enabling legislaton (that is'

legislation thal creates a new revenue source and restricts its use) Effectively'
'r."ili;il;;.';;v;;;hinged 

or lifted onlv with the consent of resource providers'

b,committed-RepresentresourcesUsedforSpecificpurposes,imposedbyformal"' I"iiJ" ii,t'" N4lnicipal's highest level of decision making authoritv (Municipal

i"g;rutrr" ,hrrgt resotutions.and ordinances) and can only be changed by a

si#ilar law. ordinance or resolution no later than the end of fiscal year'
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1. ORGANTZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

c. Assigned - Represent resources intended to be used by the Municipality for

spec]fic purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or

committed igenerally executive orders approved by the Mayor) lntent can be

expressed bt the tvlunicipal Legislature, the Mayor or by an official or body to

which the N4unicipal legislature delegates authority in conformity with the

Autonomous lVunicipalities Act of Puerto Rico, as amended' ln governmental funds

other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining

amount that is not restricted or committed.

d. Unassigned - Represent the residual classification for the Municipality's general

fund ind includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other

classifications. ln other funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report

a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which

amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

Negative fund balance amounts are assigned amounts reduced to the amount

thai will raise the fund balance to zero. Consequently, negative residual amounts

in restricted, committed and assigned fund balance classifications have been

reclassified to unassigned fund balances.

The Municipality reports resources constrained to stabilization as a specified purpose

(restricted or committed fund balance in the general fund) only if: (1) such resources

meet the other criteria for those classifications, as described above and (2) the

circumstancesorconditionsthatsignaltheneedforStabi|izationareidentifiedin
sufficient detail and are not expected to occur routinely However, the Municipality has

not entered into any stabilization-like arrangements, nor has set aside material

inancial resources for emergencies and has not established formal minimum fund

balances amounts as of for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011'

ln situations when expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available

in multipte funO bala;ce classifications, the N4unicipality generally spends committed

resources first. and then unrestricted resources Within unrestricted resources' the

Municipality generally spends committed resources first, followed by assigned

resources, and then unassigned resources.

lo.NetAssets-Restrictednetassetshavebeenreportedpursuanttotheprovisionsof
GASB Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabting Legisiation (GASB No 46)'

Thosenetassetsconsistofnetresourcesrestrictedbyexternalparties(suchasdebt
covenants, creditors, grantors, contributions, laws or regulations of other

governments, etc.), or net assets for which constraints are imposed by the

constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Enabling legslation consists of legislation that authorizes the lVunicipality to assess'

tevy, cnirge or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource

prouiO"r")I Enabling legislation establishes restrictions if it includes a legally

enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purposes

stipulated in the legislation. A legally enforceable enabling legislation restriction is one

that a party extern;l to the Nitunicipality (such as citizens, public interest groups, or the
judiciary) can compel the Municipality to honor. The Nlunicipality periodically

ieevatulies the legal enforceability of an enabling legislation to determine if any of

the resources rais;d by the enabling legislation are used for a purpose not specified

by the enabling legislation or if the Municipality has other cause for consideration'

Theclassificationofrestrictednetassetsidentifiesresourcesthathavebeenreceived
or earned by the Municipality with an explicit understanding between the lMunicipality

and the resource providers that the resources \/ould be used for specific purposes'

Grants, contributions and donations are often given under those kinds of conditions'

Bond indentures also often limitthe use of bond proceeds to specific purposes'

lnternally imposed designation of resources, including earmarking, are not reported as

restricted net assets. These designations consist of management's plans for the use

of resources, which are subject to change at the discretion of the lMunicipal

Legislature.

ln the government-wide statements, net assets are segregated into three categories:

a. /nvested rn capital assets, net of retated debt: Consist of capital asset balances

net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding balances of any bonds, notes

and other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or

improvement of those assets. This category should not include cash that is

restricted to capital assets acquisition or construction (unspent bond proceeds)

and any unamortized debt issue costs.

b. Restricted net assets: Represent net assets that are subject to restrictions

beyond the Municipal's control. These include restrictions that are externally

imiosed (by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other

goretnr"nG; or restrictions imposed by the law through constitutional

irovisions or enabling legislation (including enabling legislation passed by the

government itself).

c. lJnrestricted net assets: Represent net assets that do not meet the definition of

net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt or restricted'

unrestricted assets are often designated to indicate that management does not

consider them to be available for general operations.
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

These types of constraints are internal and management can remove or modify

them. Designations are not reported on the face statement of net assets'

ll.Accounting for Pension Costs- On )uly 7,2OO7, the lMunicipality adopted the
provisions of GASBS No. 50, Pension Disc,osure, which amended GASBS No27,
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employers, by requiring

disclosure of how the contractually required contribution rate is determined by

governments participating in multi-employer cost€haring pension plans.

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a

multi-employer cost€haring plan. Accordingly, pension costs recognized in the

accompanying basic financial statements are equal to the statutorily required

contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid required contributions.

For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASBS No. 27, the state government

of the Government of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the Employees'

Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its lnstrumentalities (ERS)

and System 2OOO, a multi-employer cost-sharing define benefit pension plan and a

hybrid defined contribution plan, respectively, in which the employees of the
l\4unicipality participate. The Municipality is considered a participant, and not a

sponsor, of these retirement systems since the majority of the participants in the
aforementioned pension trust funds are employees of the Government of Puerto Rico

and the basic financial statements of such retirement systems are part of the
financial reporting entity of the Government of Puerto Rico.

12, lnterfund and intra4ntity transactions. The Municipality has the following types of

transactions amongfunds:

a. Operating Transfers- Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as

"Operating transfer-in" by the recipient fund and as "Operating transfers{ut" by

the disbursingfund.

b. lntra-Entity Transactions- Transfers between the funds of the primary government

are reported as interfund transfers with receivables and payables presented as

amounts due to and due from otherfunds.

13. Risk financing - The lMunicipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty'

theft, tort claims and other losses. lnsurance policies are negotiated by the Puerto

Rico Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the Municipalities of

Pueno Rico. Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted from the
gross property tax collections by the CRIM for the year ended June 30, 2011 to
$3gg,s76. tt 

" "rtrent 
insurance policies have not been cancelled or terminated'
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The lvlunicipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by
the automobile accidents. The insurance is obtained through the Automobile
Accidents Compensation Administration (AACA), a component unit of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This insurance is compulsory for all licensed vehicles
used on public roads and highways in Puerto Rico. The annual premium is $35 per
licensed motor vehicle, which is paid directly to AACA.

The lvlunicipality obtains workers' compensation insurance through the State
lnsurance Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico. This insurance covers workers against injuries, disability or death because of
work or employment-related accidents, or because of illness suffered as a
consequence of their employment. Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and
deducted from the gross property tax collections by the lMunicipal Revenue Collection
Center (CRIM) for the year ended .June 30, 2011 amounted to $381,081.

The N4unicipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability,
and drivers' insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance
programs administered by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's Department of Labor
and Human Resources (DOL). These insurance programs cover workers against
unemployment and provide supplementary insurance coverage for temporary
disability, or death because work or employment-related accidents or non-
occupational disability and drivers' insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a
cost reimbursement basls.

Under Act No. 63 ofJune 21, 2010, the Legislative Assembly of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico, authorized the municipalities to procure and manage at their o\,vn

discretion all insurance policies, including those related to health plans been provided

to the municipal employees. The lVunicipality also obtains medical insurance
coverage from one health insurance company for its employees. Different health

coverage and premium options are negotiated each year by the Nilunicipality.

Premiums are paid on a monthly basis directly to the insurance company.

14.Use of Estlmates -The preparation of financial statements in conformity with USGMP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reported period. Actual amounts could differ from those
estimates.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in Puerto Rico

and Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). Proceeds from bondsandfunds
related to certain grant awards are required by law to be held with GDB.

The lvlunicipality adopted the provisions of GASB Staiement No.40 (GASB No 40), Deposit

and tnvestment Risk Disclosure, an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 3. This statement

requires that state and local governments disclose essential risk information about deposits

and investments. The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (1) credit risk, (2)

interest rate risk, (3) custodial credit risk, (4)foreign exchange exposure'

creditrisk-Thisistheriskthatanissuerorothercounterpartytoaninvestmentwillnot
fulfill its obligations. ln compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the

lMunicipality has adopted, as it's custodial and credit risk policy, the Statement of
lnvestmeni Guidetines for the Govenment of the Commonwealth of PUefto Rico- Accordingly

the Municipality invests only in obligations of the Commonwealth, obligations of the United

States of dmerica, certificates of deposits, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, or in

pools of obligations of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, which are managed by GDB'

iccording to itre aforementioned investment guidelines, the lMunicipality does not invest in

marketable securities or any types of investments for which credit risk exposure may be

significant, Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that the risk related to

aiy posslOte loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the Municipality's deposits is

considered low atJune 30,2011.

lnterest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will

adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure to

declines in fair values by: (1) not including debt investments in its investment portfolio at

J*u so, ioL tzt rimiti;g ihe weighted average maturity of its inveslments to three months

", 
i"*, l"o (Si keeping riost of iis bank deposits in interests bearing accounts generating

interests at prevailing market rates. At June 30,2O!7, the N4unicipality's investments in

certificates of deposiG are recorded at cost, which approximates their fair value Therefore'

in" vr"i"ip"fityi management has concluded that at June 30, 2011' the interest rate risk

asso"iateo'*itn tne uunicipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low'

Custodial ciedit rlsk - ln the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank

frlit", if]" Municipality's deposits may not be recovered Pursuant to the Staternent of

tiii"tm"nt Guidelines for the Gover;ment of the Commonweafth of Puerlo Rico lhe

laf"n"ei o"po"it"O in commercial banks by the Municipality are^insured by the Federal

o"po.-iiinirirn." corporation (FDlc) generally up to a maximum of $25o'o00 per depositor'
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2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

ln addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are fully

i""rriti". pf"OC"O as collateral are held, in the Municipality's name, by the agents of the

commonwianrr:s Secretary of Treasury. Deposits with GDB are uninsured and

uncollateralized. However, no losses related to defaults by GDB on deposit transactions have

Oe"n incr"eO by the Municipality through June 30,2OTT Therefore, the Municipality's

management ha; conctuded that at June 30, 2011 the custodial credit risk associated with

the Nlunicipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low'

Foreignexchangerisk-Theriskthatchangesinexchangerateswilladverselyaffectthe
value of an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment guidelines'

the l\4unicipality is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other types of

investmenti in which foreign exchange risk exposure may be significant Accordingly'

managementhasconcludedthattheforeignexchangeriskrelatedtothel\4unicipality's
deposits is considered low at June 30, 2011.

Under Commonwealth of Puerto Rico statutes public funds deposited in commercial banks

must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited in excess of federal depository

insurance. Ail securities pledged as collateral are held bythe Secretary of the Treasury of

Puerto Rico. ln addition, the Municipality maintains deposits with the Government

Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB).

Deposits - The N4unicipality's bank balances in commercial banks of $6,255,223 in the

general fund, $2,235,544 in the special revenue fund (02), $3'887'655 in the capital

iiojects tunoi -state and federal grants and $288,72f in the others governmental funds

were fully collateralized at June 30, 2011.

The deposits at GDB of 1,OO5,OOO in the general fund, $2,893,818 in the special revenue

tunO (CiZ), $4,731,732 in the debt service fund that is restricted and $1'331'319 in the

capitat piojects funO - state and federal grants are unsecured and uncollateralized' as no

coilateral is required to be carried by governmental banks'

3. RECEIVABLES

A- Munlcipal License Tax - The Municipality imposes a municipal license tax on all

businessesthatoperateWithinthelv|Unicipality,whicharenottotallyorpartiallyexempt
from the tax pursuant to the lndustrial lncentives Acts of the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico.ThiSisaSelf-assessedtaxbasedonthebusinessvolumeingrosssalesasshown
in the tax return that is due on April 15 of each year' Entities with sales volume of

irboo,ooo or more must include audited financial statements together with the tax

return. During the fiscalyear ended June 30, 2011, the tax rates were as follows:

1. Financial business- 1.50% of gross revenues

2. Other organizations- 0,50% of gross revenues 
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3. RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

This tax is due in two equal installments on July l and lanuary 1 of each fiscal year' A
discount of 57o is allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15. l\4unicipal

license tax receivable of $1,362 represents filed municipal license tax returns that were

uncollected as of Jun e 30,2071, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts'

Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year is

recorded as deferred revenues.

B. Federal grants receivables in the Other Governmental Funds represent mainly

expendituies incurred not yet reimbursed by the Federal Government Following is a

detail ofthe federal grant receivables;

Amount

$ 117.913

$lr7-913

PIoEIam Descliption

Community Development BlockGrants_ Entitlement

Total

4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

a. Due from/to othelfund:

Fund

GeneralFund (01)
Special Revenue Fund (02)

Capital Projects Funds (2O & 21)
Other Governmental Fund

Total

b. Transfer inlout to other fund

Following is a summary of interfund transfers for the year:

lnterfund receivables and payables at .June 30, 2011 are summarized as follows:

Receivable Fund

$ 988,240
50,389

161,1a6

$1199315

Pavable Fund

$ 2,661
829,954
243,653
723.547

$'L199.a15

Transfer out Transfel in

GeneralFundlol) OebtServiceFund(1O)

Special Revenue Fund- Paoprietary Fund-Business
(o2)state & Federal Type Activity-Enterprise

Grants Fund

SpecialRevenue
Fund (7O)

Total

Purcose

Transfers funds to cover debt seruice
payments

Transfers funds to cover debt service
payments

Amount

$ 486,435

30,ooo

Proprietary Fund Business Transferfundsto cover Section 1o8

Type Activity-Enterprise Loan Payment (Hotel Treasure lsland)

Fund 554 390

$L070325
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

5. CAPITAL ASSEIS

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of one year or more from the time of
acquisition by the Municipality and a cost of $25 or more, are primarily funded through the
issuance of long-term bondsand loans. Asummaryof capital assets and changes occurring
in 2011, including those changes pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No.
34, follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation:

Governmental Activities:

Capltal as:set, not being depreclated:

Construction in progress
Land

Totalcapital as.sets not belng
depreciated

Capital assets, belng depreciated:

Euildings and building
improvements
lnfrastructure and lnfrastructure
improvements
Equipments
Furnishing
Computels
Work6 ofart
Vehicles

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated dep€ciation for:

Buildings and building
imptovements
lnfrastructure and lnfrastructure
improvements
Equipments
Furnishing
Computers
Works of art
Vehicles

Total accumulated depieciation

Total capital assets being
depaeclated, net

Govemmental activities capltal
assets, net

Balance
July 1, 2010
As rcstated Additions

$ 111,373 $ 280,795
22.766.300 724.445

Retirements/ Balance
Reclassificatlons 1une30.2011

22.477.673 7.OO5.240 (49.368)

$ (49,368)

l!1o,475],
(4,445)

{26,983)

$ 342,800
23.490.7 45

23.a33.545

33,7 47,7a5

27,616,608
4,O54,302
1,281,335

620,951
6,747

5.905.158

73.226.926

(7,497,766)

(10,313,615)
l.3,246,242)

(892,549)
(564,099)

12,461)

48,900

7,449,785
744,492

7,87 4
44,580

399.480

(442,442)

o25,OA7)
1318,432)
1142,2O2)

144,476)
(660)

(141.9031

33,790,68s

29,065,793
4,O92,779
7,244,764

638,548
6,787

6.304,638

75.183.934

(8,340,208)

$1,034,702)
(3,459,079)
(1,030,306)

(581,812)
(3,727)

t5.720.274\

105,635
4,445

26,763

i5.500.427) 1279.797\

{24.017.199) {2.293.090)

45.209.727 (194.179\

$ 68-087100 $ 111.q61

136.443 {30.173.446)

i5.060) 45.010,438

$ 1!t42& $ 68-&l4lE3
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5. CAPTTAL ASSETS (CONTTNUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows:

GoveInmental activities:

Generalgovernment
Public safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Community development

Total depreciation expensegovernmental actlvltles

Balance
July 1, 2O1O
as restated Addltions

Amount

$ 752,230
772.577
484,978

71,466
214,987
196.51a

$2293-090

600.o00

6,576,754
171-.425

6.7 48.779

(876,901)
t77.947\

t944.442)

5.799.337

Buslness - tvoe activities

Capital asset, not belng
depreciated:

Land

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capltal assets, being depreciated:

Building
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Building
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
deprcciated, net

Business - type Activities capital
assets, net

Retirements/ Balance
Adiustments lune 30. 2011

$ 600.000 $ $ $ 600.000

600.000

6,576,754
771.425

6.7 4A.779

F12,442\ O64,4re)
t37.656) (34.285)

(750.138) (198.704)

5.99a.041 (198.704)

$ 6598041 $ 11981@U t . $ 6399,332

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the [,lunicipality as follows:
Buslness -tvoe Activities
Community development

Total depreciation expensegovernmental activities

$ 198.704

$ 198J04
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

6. PROPERTYTAXES

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by
May 15 of each year with the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRllvl), a governmental
entity created by the government of Puerto Rico as part of the lMunicipal Governmental
Autonomous Law of August 1991. Real property tax is assessed bythe CRII\4 on each piece
of real estate and on each building.

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for
personal property and on estimated values as of 7957 tot rcal property tax. The tax on
personal property must be paid in full together with the return by [Iay 15. The tax on real
property may be paid in two installments by July 1 and January 1. The CRIM is responsible
for the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf of all the
municipalities of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIIV informs
the lvlunicipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collect for the
ensuing fiscal year. Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the [,lunicipality
based on the initial estimated collections, as modified by the quarterly revisions of
estimates required law. The CRIIM is required by lawto prepare a liquidation statement on a
fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the
Nlunicipality and amounts actually collected from taxpayers. This preliminary liquidation has
to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal year-end, and
a final liquidation made not later than six months after year-end, subject to the verification
by its lndependent Auditors. lf the CRINI remits to the Municipality property tax advances,
which are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable from the CRIM is recorded at
June 30. However, if advances exceed the amount actually collected by the CRIM, a payable
to the CRIIM is recorded at June 30. The CRIN4 issued the final liquidation for fiscal year
2O7O-2OIL noting that the advances exceeded co ections by $ 29,777.A7- This batance
will be retained by the CRIM during fiscal year 2012-2013. Those amounts are presented in
the government wide financial statements.

On January 26, 2000, Public Law No.42 was enacted, which authorized the CRIIV to obtain
a loan up to $200,000,000, and for a term not to exceeding 10 years, to allow for the
financing of the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIN4 arising from
final settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections through fiscal year
ended June 30, 2000.

The amounts that the l\,lunicipalities will collect from additional property taxes resulting from
increases in the subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico to the Municipalities are
assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this subsidy was the result of
the Public Law No. 238, enacted on August 15, 1999. On October 11,2001, pubtic Law No.
146 was enacted to amend Public Law No- 42, to extend the loan amortization period up to
30 years. Also, on October 77,2OO2, Public Law No. 172 was enacted, to provide as an
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6. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED)

option for the lMunicipalities to include the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have
with the CRllvl arising from final settlements of property tax advances versus actual
collections for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 with the loan authorized through Public
Law No. 42 enacted on January 26,2OOO.

On June 26 1997, Public Law No. 21 was enacted, which authorizing the CRIM, among other
things, to sell the property tax receivables related to taxpayers who owed property taxes
from 1974 to 1996. Such property tax receivables were purchased by the Public Financing
Corporation, a subsidiary of the Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GDB) using
the proceeds of a bond issuance executed for such purposes. Said Law imposed the CRllvl
the obligation to replace uncollectible property tax receivables with any valid property tax
receivable o equivalent in money. Subsequent to the approval of the Law and to the sale
transaction, it was detected that a substantial percentage of the receivables sold were
uncollectible. ln order to protect the economic damage to the financial structure of
municipalities caused by the substitution of uncollectible tax receivables with sound
collectible receivables, on October L1, 2OO!, Public Law No. 146 was approved and
enacted. Through this Law, the CRIM was authorized to obtain a loan from any qualified
financial institution and pay in advance the outstanding balance of the bonds issued and
any related cost incurred for the purchase by the Public Financing Corporation (a GDB
subsidiary) of the tax receivables.

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of
property taxes on the first $ 15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts,
the Puerto Rico Treasury Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the
Municipalities, except for property assessed at less than $ 3,500 for which no payment is
made. As part of the Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amount to be paid by
the Puerto Rico Treasury department to the Municipalities was frozen as of January 1, 1992.
ln addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property taxes of
up to $ 50,000 of the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than
$150,000.

The annual tax rate is 8.58% for real property and 6.58% for personal property of which
1.03% of both tax rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as follows: (a) 5.8yo and 3,8ya,
respectively, represents the Municipality's basic property tax rate which is appropriated for
basics and accounted for in the general fund. A portion of such amount is deposited in an
equalization fund together with a percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico
electronic lottery and a subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Fromsuchfund,a
distribution is made to all municipalities; (b) 1.75% represents the ad valorem tax restricted
for debt service and accounted for in the debt service fund, The Commonwealth also
contributes an annual tax rate of O.2yo ol lhe property tax collected and such amount is
accounted for similar to item (a) above.
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7. MUNICIPAL SALES AND USE TAX

On July 29, 2007, an amendment to Act No. 7!7 of July 4, 2006, known as the "Tax
Fairness Act of 2006", was enacted with the purpose of establishing a mandatory sales and
use tax of 1.5% at the l\4unicipal Level. The Municipalities of Puerto Rico are responsible to
collect 1% of the corresponding tax with the same exemptions and limitations that the
portion collected by the Treasury Department. The Act provides an optional surtax on the un-
process food, This surtax must be approved by the N4unicipal Legislature. The Treasury
Department is responsible to create, the Municipal Development Fund (.27o), the lvlunicipal
Redemption Fund (.2o/o) and the lvlunicipal lmprovements Fund (.1%) with the remaining
0.5%. The lMunicipality collected $ 1,664,466 during the year ended June 30, 2011.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2011 are summarized as follows:

a.

Revenoe Fund Debt s.Pi@
(02) - state & F!nd-
L@l Granrs (1O & 11)

Fund (20 &21) Other
- state& Govemmental

L@l G.anrs FundA6crilliotr

$ 666,744 $ 377,472 $ $ 74.569 $ 56,962 $ 1,170,187

4.317 67.722

$ 730 raq $ 371.472 $ - $ 74169 $ 61279 $ tl2:17€a9

9. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

The amounts due to other governmental entities in the general fund include the following:

GovernmentalEntitv

Genera I Services Ad m inistration
Retirement Slstem Admanistration
Puerto Rico Telephone Company
Pueno Rico Aqueduct and SewerAuthority
Department of Labor-Unemployment Program
Others

Tolal

Amount

$ 357
151,769
23,008
20,000

4,061
42.844

$ 2LZA39

lO.DEFERRED REVENUES

A. Municipal License Tax- The deferred revenues of $7,260,456 in the general fund relates
to municipal license tax collected in fiscal year 2010-11that will be earned in fiscal year
207t-72.
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10. DEFERRED REVENUES (CONTINUED)

B. Federal Grants- The deferred revenues presented in other governmental funds
represents the portion of federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have
not been incurred. Deferred revenues from the federa I government a re as follows:

ProEram Descriptlon

Child Care and Development Etock crants

fotal

11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Amg!!!

$ 21.956

$ 2t-956

Description
Beginnjng BorowinEs
Balance orAdditlons

Payments or Ending
Deductions Balance

Due Within
One Year

Bonds Payable
Notes Payable
State Insurance Fund
Corporation
Lllivls Repayment Plan
Property Taxes Debt
Compensated Absences
LandfillObligation

Total

$21,080,OOO $3,035,000
10,785,000 1,005,000

27,646
a47.396
310,532 29,77a

3,908,159 107,435
718.000

s36.976J73 $4r.76,e!:I

$ (820,000) $ 23,295,000 $1,030,000
(640,000) 11,150,000 646,000

(27,686)

{96,816) 50,5a0 50,580
(310,532) 29,77A 29,77A
1565,244) 3,450,350 500.000
147.000) 671.000 47.OO0

$i2,507278t $3831q108 $2302J5E

1. Legal Debt Margin-The l u nicipality is subject to a tegat debt margin requtrement, which
is equal to 10% of the total assessment of property located within the Municipality plus
balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable to be repaid
with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt service. ln addition, before any
new bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should be sufficient to
cover the poected debt service requirement. Long-term debt, except for the bonds
payable, is paid with unrestricted funds.
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11. LONG-TERM UAB|UT|ES (CONTTNUED)

2. Bonds Payable- The lvlunicipality issues general and special obligation bonds to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. Bonds payable
outstanding at June 30, 2011 are as follows:

1996 General obligation bond for the acquisition of reat estate with an originat amount
of $605,000 due in annual installments of $25,OOO to $5O,OOO, through Juty 7,2O2t,
with interest of 4.86% to 6.75%

1999 General obligation bond for the acquisition of real estate with an original amount
of $260,000 due in annual instattments of g5,OOO to g25,OOO throug,h )uty 7, 2024,
with interest of 2.70% to 7.81%

1999 General obligation bond for btue p nts drawings, permits, structure demotition
and debris disposition with an orignat amount of $710,OO0 due in tnsta ments of
$20,0OO to $60,000 through July 1,2024, with interesr rangingfrom 2.8% to 7.8%

2000 General obligation bond for the construction of capitat asseG with an orignat
amount of $6,440,000 due in installments of $175,000 to $560,000 through Juty 1,
2025, with interest rangingtrcm 2.7O% to 7.8O%

2002 Special obligation bond for asphatt municipal streets, roads and to finance
operational loan with an orjginat amount of $1,335,0OO due in instaltments of g65.000
to $120,000 through July 1,2026, with interest rangingfrom 5.0% to 6.5%

2002 Special obligation bond for the acquisjtion of reat estate wath an original amount
of $580,000 due in installments of 920,000 to $45,OOO through Juty 1, 2026, with
interest ranging from 5.O%to 6.5%

2004 Special obligation bond for asphalt municipat streets and roads with an originat
amount of $905,000 due in instattments of $95,000 to $115,000 through luty 1,
2014, with interest ranging from 5.0%to 12.0%

2004 Special obligation bond for the construction of a capitat assets with an original
amount of $4,020,000 due in instattments of 9115,000 to $28O,OOO through Juty 1,
2029, with interest rangangfrom 5.0%to 12.0%

2OO5 General obligation bond for the construction of capital assets with an original
amount of $435,0OO due in instattments of $10,000 to $3O.OOO through Juty 7,2029,
with interest ranging from 4.37% to 5.OO%

2005 General obligation bond for asphalt municipal streets, roads and for construction
ofcapitalassets with an originalamount of9730,000 due in instalments of$35,OOO to
$75,000through July 1,2014, with interest rangingtrcm 4.23okto 4.aO%

2006 General obligation bond for the construction of capitat assets with an originat
amount of $5,050,000 due in annuat instattments of $1OO,OOO to $410,OOO, through
July 1,2031, with interesl ol 6.62o/a to 7.25aA

Oescriptlon
Balance at

June 30,2011

$ 405,000

205,O00

550,O00

5,160,000

925,000

465,000

325,000

3,405,000

375,000

575,000

4,695,000
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Description
Balance at

June 30,2011

2008 General obligation bond for the construction of capitat assets with an originat
amount of $1,580,000 due in annuat installments of g13O,OOO to $215,000 through
July 1,2017, with interest of 7.50%

2010 General obligation bond to compensate budgetary obtigations with an originat
amount of $1,980,000 due in insra ments of $25,ooo to $165,000, through Juay 1,
2024, with interest rangingfrom 5.O% to 7.5%

2011 General obligation bond for infrastructure construction and improvements with an
orjgnal amount of $2,015,000 due tn instatlments of g14O,OOO to g275,OOO through
luly 1, 2020, with interest rangingfrom 6.00% to 7.SO%

2011 Special obligation bond for operationat expenses with an originat amount of
$1,020,OOO due in insraflments of $1O,OOO to $85,OOO through Juty 1,2035, with
interest ra nging from 6.00% to 7 .5O%

Total

Year Ending
June 30,

$ 1,030,000
1,115,000
1,180,000
1,150,000
1,230.000
6.855,000
5,975,O00
3,375,000
1,3a5.OO0

These bonds are payable from the special ad valorem property tax of 1.75% which is
restricted for debt service and retained by the covernment Development Bank for puerto Rico
for such purposes. The series 2011 of $1,O2O,OOO, is payable with the revenues generated
from the collection of the .2% of the municipal sales and use tax imposed by the Municipality
and collected by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows:

1.020.000

$"3295-0A0

$ 1,220,OOO

1.955,000

2,015.OOO

20a2
20t3
2014
2045
20a6
2077 2027
2022-2026
2027 2031
2032-2036

Toial

$ 1,036,399
1,355,100
7,245,926
7,2t4,797
7,t4L,OA9
4,467,67 4
2,534,737
7,047,546

442,763

$ 14,262,425$ 23,295,000
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3. Notes Payable The proceeds of the issuance of notes payable were used principally to
pay debt incurred in prior years and to cover the expenditures of a special event. The
notes are payable as follows:

2006 General obligations notes
200+ASe es- Section 1O8 Loan
2006'ASerie+ Section 1O8 Loan
2007 Generai obligations notes
2007 General obligations notes
2008 Special obligations notes
2010 General obligations notes
2011 Special obligations notes

Total notes payable

2072
2013
2014
2045
2076
2017-2021
20222026
2027-2037
2032 2036

Total

of notes
Maturity

Oate

7-a-13
e722
8 724
7-7-14
7-7,74
7-a-32
7-7-32
7 7-32

OriElinal
Amount

Range ot
lnterest rates

Balance at
June 30,2011

545,O00
5,100,000
1,895,000

270,000
445,000

3.170,000
390,000

1,005,o00

6.62% to 7 .25Ya
Variable
Va.iable

6.48% to 7 .5O%
6.48% to 7.50%

7.50%
6.00% to 7.50%

7.50%

$ 270,000
4,300,000
1,695,000

170,000
290,OOO

3,070,000
350,000

1,O05,000

$ 11,150,OOO

These notes are payable from special ad valorem property tax of 1.75yo and the
Municipal sales and use tax of (.030%)which are restricted for debt service and retained
by the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes. The Section
108 is payable from Special Revenue Fund - Federal Grant funds. The Series 2OOg
amounting $3,17O,O00, is payable with the revenues generated from the collection of
the .2% of the municipal sales and use tax imposed by the l\Iunicipality and collected by
the Puerto Rico Treasury Department.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, principal lnterest

$ 646,000
801,000
861,OO0
811.O00
731,000

3,665,000
2,110,000
1,005,000

520,OOO

$ 464,695
649,627
597,244
544,526
496,572

7,785,484
819,557
393,938

39,750

$ 11,150,000 $ 5,791,093

4. LIMS Repayment Plan- During the fiscat year 2000,2001the l\4unicipatity authorized the
CRIM to retain the corresponding portion for the financing project of Land lnformation
lManagement System- LIMS, contracted by the CRlNr. A totat of $776,667 is to be retained
in ten years period at an interest rate of 5,95% until November 2A,2OL7- At June 30,
2011, the outstanding balance is $50,580. This amount is presented in the government
wide financial statement.
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5. Property Taxes Debts. These amounts represents the balance owed to the Treasury
Department and to the Municipal Revenue Collection Center ('CRIM') at June 30, 2011.
The CRllvl issued a settlement noting that the advances exceeded collections by 929,178.
ln the government-wide financial statements, the entire amount has been recognized as
long term debt.

6. Compensated Absences. The government-wide statement of net assets includes
approximately $2,173,000 of accrued sick leave benefits, and approximately $1,277,000
of accrued vacation benefits, representing the lvunicipality's commitment to fund such
costs from future operations.

7. Landfill Obllgation- State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to
place a final cover on its landfill site since 1994, when it stopped accepting waste, and
perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after
closure. ln accordance with Statement No. 18 of the GASB, 'Accounting for lvunicipal
Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post-closure Care Costs", the Municipality has performed
a study of the activities that need to be implemented at the Municipality's landfill to
comply with applicable state and federal regulations. Based on this study, the Municipality
has recognized $671,000 as the l\4unicipality's estimated current cost for landfill post-
closure costs as of June 30,2O1,L, The annual estimate of post closure costs has been
assessed approximately to be $47,000 for a period of approximately 18 years. Actual
costs may be different due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in laws and
regulations. The balance of post{losure costs is reported in the government-wide
statement of net assets.

12. PENSION PLAN

The Employee's Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its lnstrumentalities (the
Retirement System) is a cost{haring multiple defined benefit pension plan sponsored by,
and reported as a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. All regular
employees of the lvunicipality under 55 years of age at the date of employment become
members of the Retirement System as a condition to their employment.

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to
legislation enacted by the Commonwealth's legislature. Disability retirement benefits are
available to members for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. Retirement
benefits depend upon age at retirement and the number of years of creditable service.
Benefits vest after ten years of plan participation.

Members who have attained 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of
creditable service or members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten
years of creditable service are entitled to an annual beneflt payable monthly for life.
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12. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

The amount of the annuity shall be one and onehalf percent of the average compensation,

as defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus

two percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of

credltable service in excess of 20 years. lnnocasewill the annuity be less than $200 per

month.

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to
receive the lverit Annuity, Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive

65 percent of the average compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent

of the average compensation, as defined. No benefits are payable if the participant

receives a refund of his/her accumulated contributions. Disability retirement benefits are

available to members for occupational disability up to a maximum benefit of 50% of the
average salary, as defined. However, for non{ccupational disability, a member must have

at least 10 years of creditable services.

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5,775a/o lot lhe first $550 of
their monthly gross salary and 8.275o/o lor the excess over $ 550 of monthly gross salary'

The Municipality is required by the same statute to contribute 9.275% of the participant's

gross salary.

on September 24, 1999, an amendment to Act. No. 447 oi May 15, 1951, which created

the Retirement System, was enacted with the purpose of establishing a new pension

program (System 2OOO). Employee's participation in the current system as of December

31, 1999, may elect to stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to the new program'

Persons joining the Municipality on or after January 1, 2000, will only be allowed to become

members of System 2OOO. System 2OO0will reduce the retirement age from 65 years to

60 for those employees who joined the current plan on or after April 1, 1990'

System 2OOo is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan'

U;der this new plan, there will be a pool of pension assets, which will be invested by ERS

together with those of the current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

will not guarantee benefits at retirement age. Theannuitywill be based on a formula which

assume; that each year the employee's contribution (with a minimum of 8 275% to the

employee's salary up to a maximum of 1O%) will be invested in an account which will either:

(1) eain a fixed rate based on the twGyear Constant Maturity Treasury Note or, (2) earn a

iaie equal to 75% of the return of the ERS'S investment portfolio (net of management fees),

or (3) earn a combination of both alternatives. Participants will receive periodic account

statements similar to those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances.

Disability pensions will not be granted under System 2000. The employeas contribution
(9.275% of the employee's salary) will be used to fund the current plan.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

12. PENSTON PLAN (CONTTNUED)

lf at the time of retirement accumulated benefjts amount to $1O,OOO or less may elect to
receive a lump sum distribution up to the accumulated benefits. Under the new program
the retirement age is reduced from 65 to 60 for those employees who joined the cuirent
plan on or after April 1, 1990.

Fundinq Policy

The authority under which the funding policy and the obligations to contribute to the ERS
and System 2000 by the plans' members, employers and other contributing entitjes (state
and municipal contributions), are established or may be amended by law.

Contribution requirements are established by law and are as follows:

Municipatity 9.275% of gross salary
Employees:

Hired on or before March 31, 1990 5.775% of gross salary up to $6,600
8.275% of gross satary over $6,600

Hired on or before April 1, 1990 8.275% of gross salary

Annual Contibution

The lvlunicipality contributions during those years are recognized as total pension
expenditures/expenses in the category of administration as follows;

Fiscalvear

207L
20LO

2009

Law No. 447

$ 396,787

$ 416,677

$ 415,308

Svstem 2000

$ 312,618

$ 308,328

$ 308,743

These amounts represented the 100% of the required contribution for the corresponding
year, Additionally, changes made in the types and amounts of benefits offered by special
laws and cost of living adjustments, led to a onetine recommended contribution to fund
the retroactive adjustment related to the changes.

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for
the year ended June 30, 2011, a copy of which can be obtained from the Retirement
System, Nlinillas Station, PO Box 42004, San Juan, pR OO94O.
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14. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Property Division of the Municipatity is responsible of assuring that the N,tunicipatity,s
property is properly insured. Annually, the property Division compiles the information of all
property owned and its respective market value. After evaluating this information, the property
Division submits the data regarding the Municipality's properties to the Area of public lnsuranc;
at the Department of the Treasury of the commonwearth of puerto Rico who is responsible for
purchasing all property and casualty insurance policies of all municipalities. setfled claims have
not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Fede/algrants:

The Nrunicipality participates in a number of Federal Financial Assistance programs.
Although the l\4unicipality's grant programs have been audited in accordance with the
provisions of the Singte Audit Act of 1996, through June 30, 2011, these programs are
still subject to financial and compliance audits by the granting agencies and the
resolution of previously identified questioned costs. The amount, if any, of expenditures
which may be disallowed by the grating agencies cannot be determined at this time,
although the N4unicipality expects such amounts, if any, not to be material.

Claims and lawsuits:

The lvunicipality is a defendant in several legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary
course of the lMunicipality's activities. Certain of these claims are covered by insurance.
The administration believes that the ultimate liability, if any, would not be significant. As
a result, the accompanying financial statements do not include adjustments, if any, that
could result from the resolution of these legal proceedings,

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

C. Other Commitments:

At June 30, 2071, lhe general fund has commitments of approximately $43,940 for
executor, purchase orders or contracts that will be honored during the subsequent year.

16. FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements that have effective dates after June 30,
2077i

a. GASB Statement No. 60, Accountmg and Financial Repofting for Service Concession
Arrangements (GASB 60). The requirements of this statement are effective for the fiscal
year commencing on )uly 7,2077.

A.

B.
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16, FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

* b. GASB Statement No.6!,The Financial Reportr'ng Entty (GASB 61). The requirements of
' th is statement are effective for the fiscal year commencing after Ju n e 75,2OL2.

- c. GASB Statement No.62, Codification of AccountinE and Financial Reporting Guidance
contained in PreNovembet 30, 7989 FASB and AICPA pronouncements (GASB 62). The
requirements of this statement are effective for the fiscal year commencing on July 1,
2072.

d. GASB Statement No. 63, Financral Repofting Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred

- lnflows of Resources and Net Position. The requirements of this statement are effective
for the fiscal year commencing on December 15, 2011.

e. GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative lnstruments: Application of Hedge Accounting
Termination Provision (amendment to GASB Staternent No. 53). The requirements of this
statement are effective for the fiscal year commencing on June 15, 2011.

- The impact of these statements on the l\4unicipality's basic financial statements has not yet
been determined.

- 17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

A. GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- The following restatements have been made in the governmentalfund financial statements,
which are reported a" 

"n "oiu",r"fll,,he 
beginning fund balances:

"":::[T', Deb,serye Sli*t?S"',,:l "*ilH",",pe*lptlon Geneal Fund Federal Grants Fond 110 & 11) Grants Funds Total

- Fund balance beBnning $ 60,a29 $ 2,930,307 93.001,702 $ 4,969,106 $ 106,22a $ U,068.172

Cancellation of pr or year

Fund balance, beginning
- * 'eut"t"d 52,93o-3ol $i-oalJo2 $ llpEg;loo 5l:)9.526 $ 1uqlrna

B. GOVERNMENTAL-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following restatements have been made in the governmental-wide financial statements,
which are reported as an adjustment to beginning net assets:

33-29a 33.294

- Descrlptlon
Net assets, beginning

Islel
$ 4a,178,261

To rcstate Capital Asseas tntasttucturc, Compute.s & vehicles 647,533

- To restate Prcp etary Fund - Enterprise Funcl - Accumulated
(30.6521

$ 48195142
- Depreciaiion eYpenses

Net a.sets, beglnnlng a5 restated
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Act No. 94 issued on June 16, 2011 by the Legislature established an incentive plan for the
payment of real and personal property tax dues, beginning on July 14, 2011. This Act
provides an amnesty to all property tax payers forgiving all penalties, charges and interests
of the unpaid principal of pass-due property tax liability. The period that tax payers have to
enjoy for such benefit is for exacfly ninety (90) days beginning on July 14 through October
77,2071.fhe unpaid property taxes covered under this Act are those related to fiscal year
2009-2010 and earlier (for real property taxes) and for 2OO8 and earlier for personal
property tax.

56



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
(SEE NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

o ginal
(Budgetary Basls)

(see Note 1)

Final Budget

(Negative)
REVENUES:

M unicipal license tax
Fines and forfeiture
Licenses, permG and other tocattaxes
Cna rges for setuices
lnte(overnmental

EXPEI{DIIUREs, ENCUMBRANCES AIID OIIIER
FIT{ANCING USES:

General govern ment

Health and werare
Cutture and recreation
Economic development
Opemting tnnsfer to other funds

Total expandilures, encumbrances and other

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVEI{OES OVER (UNDER)

EGENDMJRES, EI{CUMBRANCESAND OIHER
F|NAI{C|NG SOURCES (USEs)

$ 4,505,743
8.267,L27

150,000
2,740,OOO

45,000
4.729,69L

340,OOO
4,800

390.OOO

27.772.36L

12,247,O22
1,196,086
4.593,512
L,622,O20
t,o94,770

41a,951

$ 4,505,743
8,267,t27

150,000
2.740,OOO

45,OOO
4,729.691,

340,OOO
4,800

390.OOO

2L.772.361

11,409,9a5
t,496,725
4,O52.296
2,707,O92
1,705,L47

407,7!6

$ 5.339,222
4,t24,976

779,473
325,322

5,702
4,554,181

266,528
5,000

339.661

19.140.065

10.o6L,A22
L44O,647
3,452,595
2,629,449
1,043,559

24L,797
486.435

19.836.304

$ (696.2391

$ 833,479
1742,751)

29,473
\2,414,674)

(39,298)
(175,510)

173,472)
200

(50.3391

12.032.296)

$ 2a.t72.361 $ 2L.172.361

E'qlanation of Differcnces:

Sources/lnf lows of r€sources:
Actualamounts (budgetary basis)"availa ble for a pprcpriation " from the budgetary comparisor schedute
Diferences-budget to GAAP

Total revenues and other ilnancing sources as reported in the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
cnarges in fund balances

Usee/outf lows of relources:
Actual amounts (budgetary basis)'total charges to appropriations" from the budgetary companson

Differences-budget to GMP:
Non-budgeted expenditures
Prior yea r encu m brances recorded as current year expenditu res for GAAP basis
Currentyear encumbrances rccorded as expenditures for budgetary purposes

Total expenditures and other Rnarcing uses as repoded on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances

1.348,163
15,474

199,701
77,643
61,588

(446.435)

1.336.057

g 1696.239)

$ 19,140,065

$-19;r40-o6s

$ 19,a36,304

307,717
46,267

(43.940)

120146318
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RIOO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO BUDGEIARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABITITY

A. Bud(etarv Control

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting,
which is not in accordance with USGAAP, and represents departmental appropriation;
recommended by the f\4ayor and approved by the N4unicipal Legislature prior to the
beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the
lVunicipal Legislature. Transfers of appropriations within the budget, known as lvlayor,s
Resolutions, do not require the approval of the lVunicipal Legislature.

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general fund.
For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e.,
purchase orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred. For USGMP
reporting purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations
of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the
commitments will be honored duringthe subsequent year.

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse
at the end of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project
appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has
authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made
available for current spending.

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedulsceneral Fund is
the budget ordinance at June 30, 2011 representing the original budget. There were no
supplemental appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2011.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDUTE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Federal Grantor/Paslthrough

- Ctantoi/Ptogtam or Cluster Title
CFDA Entityldentifying

Number Number Expenditures

10.558 Not Available $ 15,483

U.S, DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULlURE:

_ Pass-through Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Department of Education:

Child and Adult Care Food Program

_ Total lJ.S. Department ofAgriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSIGN AND URBAN

14.257 Not Available 292,164

15,483

DEVELOPIVIENT:

- Direct Program:
CDBG - Entitlement G ra nts Cluster; Community
DevetopmentBlockGrants/EntitlementGrants 14.218
Community Development Block Grants -
ARRA Entitlement Grants (CDBG-R)

a4a,652

(Recovery Act Funded) L4.253 777,463

- Direct Program:
Supportive Housing Program f4.235 48,578

- Direct Program:

- Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers L4.A77 t,2L6,767

Pass-through Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Family Department:

- Emergency Shelter Grants Program 74.237 ESG 04 DG720001 62,519

- Pass-through Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Municipality of San Juan:

- Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids 14.241' Not Available t8'474

Pass-through Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Family Department:

- Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing
' (Recovery Act Funded)

Total U.S. Department of Housing and

- Urban Development

U.S, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Pass-through Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Department of Justice:

2,657,955

Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial .lustice

- Assistance Formula Grant (JAG Program) 16.804 NotAvailable L56,O24
L56,O24Total U.S. Department of rustice
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MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Federal Grantor/Pass.through
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT TRANSPORTATION:

Dired Programs:
Federal Transit: Formula Grants

ARRA - Urbanized Area Formula

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico -
Traffic Safety Commission:

State and Community Highway Safety

Pas+through Commonwealth of Pueno Rico
Department Highway Safety and Drunk:

Driving Prevention lncentive Grant

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY:

Direct Program:
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant
Program iEECBG)

Total U.S. Department oI Energy

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVtCES:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico -
Family Department (ACUDEN):

Alzheimer's Disease Demonstrations Grants
Child Care and Development Block Grant
Family Violence Prevention and Services
ARRA - Child Care and Development Block
Grant (Recovery Act Funded)

Total lJ.S. Department of Health and Human
Services

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Governor Authorized Representative (GAR):

Homeland Security Grant

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal
CFDA

Number

Pasgthrough
Entity ldentirying

Number Expenditures

20.507

20.509

20.600

20.60!

10,03-08

06-03-08

Not Available
Not Available
Not Available

Not Available

1!7,687

1o,229

58,346

242374

87.!2a 34,O29

34,O29

93.051
93.575
93.671

93.713

60,761
130,601

43,929

20,423

255,7L4

38,000

38,000

3,399,583

96.067 2005-GFT54009
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of the Municipality of Cid.a and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting, The basis of accounting is the same used to prepare the fund financial
statements. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OlvlB Circular 4-133, Audrts of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.

2. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS:

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule are included in the Special Revenue Fund
(02), Other Governmental Funds in the lMunicipality's fund financial statements and in the
Proprietary Fund - Business Type Activity - Enterprise Fund, The reconciliation between the
expenditures in the funds financial statements and the disbursements in the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards is as follows:

Description

Special
Revenue
Fund (02)

$ 922,512

4,605,076

Other
Governmenlal

Funds

Proprietary
Fund-

Business Type
Actlvities Total

Per Schedule of b(penditures
of FederalAwards

Non federal programs
expenditures

Totalexpenditures in the basic
flnancial statements

$ 2,477,O7! $ 554,390

22A,704

$ 3,953,973

4,833,780

$ 5,527,saa $ 2,477,O71 $ 783,094 $ 8,747,7s3
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Menber of:
. A$cricxn Instituie of

C€rtilied Public -{rcorntants
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Ceftiried Public -{ccountstrls
Certified Public Accountants / Management Advisors

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WTH GOVERNMENT AUDII'NG SIAIVDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Municipal Legislature
Municipality of CId.a
Cidra, Puerto Rico

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of
Cidra, Puerto Rico, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the
Municipality's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December
29, 2oL7' which was unquarified. we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 6
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting
ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the Municrparity of cidra's internar contror
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Municiparity of crdra's internar contror over financiar
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municlpality o,
Cidra's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exisis when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A mateflal weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity,s financial statements will not be
prevented, or deteded and corrected on a timely basjs,

Our consjderation of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identiry a deficie;cies
in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses. we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reportingthat we consider to be material weaknesses. as defined above.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROT OVER FINANCIAT REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE W|TH COVERNMENr AUDIT'NC SIATVDARDS (CONTTNUED)

Comoliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonabre assurance about whether the Municipafity of cidra,s financiar
statements are free of materrar misstatement, we performed tests of its compriance with certainprovisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and materiar effect on the determi;ation of financiar statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Gove rn m e nt Auditi n g Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Municipality of Cidra in
a separate letter dated December 20, 2011.

This report is intended sorery for the information and use of management and federar awarding
agencies and passthrough entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and iG
distribution is not limited.

,fu,hwk
San Juan, Puerto Rico
December 20, 2011

Stamp No. 2575522 ofthe Puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy ofthis report,

L6pez-Vega, CPA, PSC

snts / Managem€na Adviso6
,

Certifi ed Public Account
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lltmber of:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE
A DIRECTAND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Munlcipal Leglslature
Municlpality of Cidra
Cidra, Puerto Rico

Comoliance
We have audited the Municipality of Cidra,s compliance of the with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular 4-133 Comptiance Supplement that could have a
direct and materiar erfect on each of Municiparity of cidra's major federar programs for the year
ended June 30, 2077. The Munlciparity of cidra's major federal programs are identified inthe
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule ;f findings and questioned
costs. Compliance with the requirements of la\,vs, regulations, contracts, anclgrants applicableto each of its major federat programs is the responsibitity of Municip;tity oi Cidra,s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Municipality of Cidia,i compliance
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to fin;ncial auOits containeO
in the Government AuditinE standards, issued by the comptroller General of the united states;
and OMB Circular A-133, Aud,ts of States, Local Govemments, and Non-profit Organizations.
Those standards and oMB circular 4-133 require that we plan and perform the auait to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material eff;ct on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Municipality of
Cidra's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. we believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Municlpality of
CIdra's compliance with those requirements.

ln our opinion, Municipality of Cidra complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2OL!. However, the results of our auditing
procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance with those requirements, which are required=
to be reported in accordance with ON4B Circular A-133 and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items, 11{l through 11{4.

64

C.llc Paraae #1686.8i Ccrczal. San Juan. P.R.00926-3144 Tcl. (737) i77-8044 tFrx (?8?) 76d-9327



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WTH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE
A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECI ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

ovER coMPLTANCE rN ACCORDANCE WTH OMB CTRCULAR A133 (CONTTNUED)

lnternal Control Over Comollance
Management of Municipality of Cidra is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to federal programs. ln planning and performing our audit, we considered
Municipality of Cldra's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OIVB Circular 4-133, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Municipality of Cidra's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal contrcl over compl,ance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identiry all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies
as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questions costs as items 11{1
through 1m4. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance,

L6pez-Vega, CPA, PSC

ants / Management Adviso.s
r \ /

Ccnified Publi. Accoual
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE
A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAT CONTROL

ovER coMPL|ANCE tN ACCORDANCE WTH OMB CTRCULAR A_133 (CONTTNUED)

Municipality of Cidra's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit Municipality of
Cidra's responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

We also noted other matters involving the internal control over compliance and certain
immaterial instance of noncompliance, which we have reported to management of the
Municipality of Cidra in a separate letter dated March 27,2072.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, federal awarding
agencies and passthrough entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

lwkkn#,b
San Juan, Puerto Rico
Match 27,2012

Stamp No. 2575523 ofthe Puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy ofthis report.

Ldpez-Vega, CPA, PSC

Ceflified Pubti. Accountants / ManaAement Advisors
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statemenl6

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

lnternal control over financial reporting:

lvaterialweakness identified? yes No X

- Significant deficiencies identified not considered to
be material weaknesses? Yes None reported X

Noncompliance material to fanancial statements
noted? Yes No X

Federcl awards

_ lnternal Control over major programs:

lvlaterialweakness identified? yes No X

' Significant deficiencies identified not considered to
- be materialweaknesses? yes None reported X

Tvoe of auditor's reoort issued on comoliance
- for major programs: Unqualified

' Any audit findings disclosed that are required yes X No
_ to be reported in accordance with Circular

A-133, Section .51O(a)?

_ ldentification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster:
74-27A Community Development Block Grant - Entitement crant14.253 Community Development Block Grant - ARRA Entitement

Gra nts

!4.471 Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

$ 300,000

Yes No X
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

- SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section ll - Financial Statements FindinEls

' During our audit, we did not detect significant deficiencies, material weaknesses and instances
of noncompliance related to the general purpose financial statements that are required to be

- reported in accordance with Goyern ment AuditinE Standards.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Find inEi Reference

Program

Requirement

Statement of Condition

Section lll - Major FederalAwald Program Findings and Questioned Costs

LLO1.

CDBG - Entitlement Grants cluster; Community Development Block
Grant-Entitlement Program (CFDA No. 14.218) & Community
Development Block GranteARRA Entitlement Grants (CDBG-R) (Recovery

Act Funded) (CFDA No. 14.253); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban

Development

DavigBacon Act

During our Davis-Bacon Act test, we revised four (4) construction projects;

we found the following exceptions:

a) ln four (4) cases, the payrolls were not monitored for compliance with
prevailing wage rate neither signed by the program's inspector'

b) ln two (2) construction projects, the contractor did not submit on a
timely manner all the required weekly payrolls.

Davis-Bacon Act, as amended DOL (4O USC 276 a 10 276 a-7). American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Tittle XVI - General Provisions -
This Act, Wage Rate Requirements, Sec. 1606.

The Municipality's controls and procedures failed to apply all monitoring
system procedures developed to test applicable contractors with respect

to payment of prevailing wages,

The Municipality is not in compliance with Davis-Bacon Act, as amended
DOL (40 USC 276a to 276a-71.

We recommend Management to follow monitoring system procedures

developed, including the following:

a) Obtaining contractor's and subcontractor's weekly payrolls to be

reviewed on a weekly basis to establish the degree of compliance

and the nature and extend of violations, if any, and then,

communicate contractors promptly about any failure in the payroll

Criteria

Cause of Condition

Effect ol Condition

Recommendation

process.

b) We recommend that the Municipality should strengthen
procedures in order to assure that all project files contain
compliance requirement documents.

its
the
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIry OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll- Major FederalAward Program FindinEls and Questioned Costs

FindingReference 11{1(Continued)

- Questioned Costs None

Management Response

and correclve Action The lvlunicipality's Management concurs with the finding. The Program

will strengthen its internal control and procedures in the evaluation and
review of the payrolls submitted by the contractors, in order to comply
with the Davis-Bacon Act.

lmplementation Datei APril !,2072

- Responsible Person: lvrs, Linda Robert
Federal Program Department Director
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COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESIIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Finding Reference

Program

Requirement

Statement oI Condition

Section lll - Major FederalAward program FindingF and euestioned Costs

LL42

CDBG - Entitlement crants Cluste.; Community Development Block
Grant-Entitlement Progam (CFDA No. 14.218) & Community
Development Block crants"ARRA Enti ement crants (CDBG-R) (Recovery
Act Funded) (CFDA No. 14.253); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development

SpecialTest - Houslng Rehabilitation Test

During our examination of twelve (12) participant's files we found the
following situations:

a) The participant exceeded the time limit required by the program to
finish the repairs (7 cases).

b) The deduction of the medical expenses was not documented (1 case).

c) The income calculations made by the program did not agree with our
calculations (7 cases).

d) The rehabilitation was still in process during our audit (February 2012,
date ofthe last inspection) (4 cases).

24 CFR, Section 570.506 states that when CDBG, Entitlement crants
funds are used for rehabilitation, the grantee must assure that the work is
properly completed and appropriate documentation is maintained.

The program did not follow adequate internal control procedures to assure
that rehabilitations are duly completed as required by regulations and
appropriate documentation is maintained.

The Municipality is not in compliance with 24 CFR, Section 570.506.

We recommend the Program to:

a. Assure that the participant complete the rehabilitation process
within the period established in the contract.

b. Assure that all participant files include the same eligibility
determination and adequate evidence of family income,
medicalexpenses and other related data.

Criteria

Cause of Conditlon

Effect of Condltion

Recommendation
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll- Major Federal Award program Findings and euestioned Costs

_ Finding Reference 1rc2 (Continued)

- Recommendation we arso recommend an update to the program Nranuar procedures to
clari8/ the income determination process and the required evidence that
participant's must present.

Questtoned Costs None

_ Management Response
and corrective Action The N4unicipality's management concurs with the finding. The Federal

Program Director will establish communication with the program staff in
order to strengthen its monitoring system procedures related to
compliance with the Special Test _ Housing Rehabilitation.

The Federal program Director will establish a new Housing Rehabilitation
- l\4anual Proced u res d u tingliscal yeat 2O!L-2OI2-

lmplementation Datet Aprl l,2O!2

Responsible person: Mrs. Linda Robert
Federal Program Department Director

72



COMMONWEALII{ OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Reference 1rc3

Program

Requhement

Statement of Condition

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program (CFDA No. 14.371); U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development

Eligibility Test

We performed an eligibility test and examined a sample of fifteen (15)
participant files. The following summarize the deficiencies found:

a) ln one (1) participant's file, the Reasonable Rent form was not
completed when the participant moved from one housing unit to
another.

b) ln three (3) cases, the Family Repon (form HUD 50058) presented
the following errors in HAP calculations:

. ln two (2) cases the participants' income were not included for
the HAP calculations,

. ln one (1) case the income calculation was incorrect and the
allowance per dependent was included when the person was
an adult and no evidence of college studies was found in file
since 2008.

c) lnfour(4) cases, the participant's file did not include evidence ofthe
following:

1. General assistance certification (3 cases).

2. Child support debt certiflcation (3 cases).

3. lvlunicipal Revenue Collection Center debt certification (4
cases).

4. lncome veriflcation evidence (2 cases)

d) ln two (2) participant's files, the PHA failed to document whether
deficiencies found in the last unit inspection were corrected.

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Sectjons 5.609 established that as a
condition of admission or continued occupancy, the tenant must provide
all necessary information and documentation required and tenant's
authorization to veriry income eligibility. 24 CFR Subpart K Section
982.516 (a), established that PHA responsibility for reexamination of

Criteria
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll- Major FederalAwatd program Findings and euestioned Costs

FindingReference 1103(Continued)

Criterra famjly income and composition at least annually, (2) the pHA must
obtain and document in the tenant file third-party verification. Besjdes,
Code of Federat Regulations 24, Sections 982.158(d) and 982.405 (b)
states that the PHA must prepare a unit inspection report and conduct
quality control re-inspections.

ln addition, Code of Federat Regutations 24, Sections 982.54 (d) (15),
982.158 (f) (7) and 9A2.5O7 states that the pHA must update the
reasonable rent at the time of the initial leasing and before any increase
in the rent to the owner and all the times during the assisted.

The Program's officers did not obtain and complete
documentation to validate the participant,s eliglbility. ln
Municipality has no effective monitoring review process for

Cause of Condition

Effect of Condition

Recommendation

the required
addition, the
the program

internal quality control.

The Program does not meet all in cbmpliance with Code of Federal
Regulations 24 and could have an effect in the performance on SEI\4AP
report.

The Program should strengthen internal supervisory quality control
procedures to monitor performance, ensure compliance with these
requirements and train staff on documentation and verification process.

None a

The Municipality's management concurs with the finding. During this
fiscal year 2077-2072, the program staff is working to correct the
situations commented in the finding.

lmplementation Datet Ap'll 7,2072

Responsible Person: Mrs. Linda Robert
Federal Program Department Director

Questioned Costs

lVanagement Response
and Cofiective Action
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2011

Section lll - Major FederalAward program Findings and euestioned Costs

Finding Reference

Program

Requirement

Statement ofCondition

Criteria

LL$4

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher progiam (CFDA No. 14.871); U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development

HAP Register Test

We noted that the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers program did not
maintain a HAP register in the form required by HUD_ The pHA is required
to maintain a HAP contract register or similar record that must provide
information as to the name and address of the family, the name and
address of the owner, dwelling unit size, the beginning date of the lease
term, the monthly rent payable to the owner, monthly rent payable by the
family to the owner, and the monthly HAp. The record shall also provide
data as to the date the family vacates and the number of days the unit is
vacant if any.

24 CFR Subpart D, Section 982.158 states (a) The pHA must maintain
complete and accurate accounts and other records for the program in
accordance with HUD requirements, ln a manner that permits a speedy
and effective audit. The records must be in the form required by HUD,
including requirements governing computerized or electronic forms of
record-keeping,

The program is not performing an effective review of compliance
requirement that are required by HUD.

The PHA ls not in compliance with laws and established regulation as
prescribed by HUD.

Procedures should be implemented to ascertain that the pHA complies
with the established Federal Regulation, as prescribed by HUD.

None

The Program will take procedures to comply with the preparation of the
HAP contract register or similar record in the form required by HUD
d urinq f tscal yeat 2077-2072.

Caus€ of Condition

E feci ot Condition

Recommendation

Questioned Costs

Management Response
and Correctlve Action
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - Major FederalAward program FindingF and euestioned Costs

Finding Reference 1rc4 (Continued)

Management Response
and Correc ve Action lmplementation Date]. April L,2O!2

Responsible person: l\4rs. Linda Roben
Federal Program Department Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIry OF CIDRA

SUMMARYSCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Origlnal
Finding
Number

CFDA Cu[ent Status of Prior year Audtt Federat Award Fhdings - paft Flndings
(As requi.ed by OMA Circular A-133)

10_01 74.2!8

70.o2 74.A7 7

Checklist forms were not marked as Pass. Fail or lnconclusive. b) ln one
(1) oarticioant's file. the Reasonable Rent form was not comoleted when
the particioant chanEed from one housing unit to another on 2008. c) ln
four (4) cases. the PHA/Tenant Certification is not signed bv pHA staff. d)
ln one (1) case. the particioant's file did not include evidence of updated
Good Behavior Certificate and familv comoosition photo. e) ln two {2)
oarticipant's files. the PHA failed to document whether deficiencies found
in the last insoection were corrected. fl One (1) particioant's file did not
lnclude the lnsoection Form for fiscal vear 09-10. E) One (1) oarticioant's
file did not include the Familv Report Form (50058) for fiscat vear 09-10.

No corrective action was taken. See current year finding number 11-03

10.03 L4.477 Durinp our Housinp Oualitv Sffi
oarticioant's files and identified the followinE situations: ln six {6) files
examined. we noted that the insoection reoort do not indicate the final
oass date. After the deficiencies were corrected. a) ln one 11) file
examined. the insoection reoort does not have the initials of the lnsoector
Officer that certifies the date on which the deficiencies were corrected. b)
ln one l1) file examined. the oriEinal insoection and re-inspection forms
were not in the file particioant's.

Full corrective action has been taken

ro.o4 74.477 Durinp our Soecial Test - Dffi
Section 8 Housind Choice Vouchers Proqram did not comolv with the
compliance reouirement of Deoositorv AEreements. The PHA is reouired to
enter into deoosit

77

uu I I r{ uur ncuur L[ tp resr we toenltTteo tne To owtnE exceDtions: a) FOr th€
vear ended 6/30/10 the accountinE records (administrative cost) did nol
aSree With the Financial O artrrlv Ran^rr hv (r onr ?E h\ cE r.E
tederal Financial Reoort tcash status onlv) was not submitted for tre
fiscal vear ended June 30. 2010.

Full corrective action has been taken.

lg OuI Eligibility test we reviewed fifteen f15) oarticininr'q ritac *,



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original
FlndinEj
Number

CFDA Cu nent Status of Prior year Aud it Federal Award Findings - pan t Find ings
(As requked by OMB Circutar A-133)

form reouired bv HUD. (Form HlJDl5TdE

Full corrective action has been taken.

o9-01 74.278

wage rate neither signed bv the proEram,s inspector. d) ln one (1) case.
the file has no evidence of on,site visits performed bv the oroEram's
insoector. e) ln one (1) construction oroiect. the contractor did not submit.
timely. allthe reouired weeklv oavrolls.

Full corrective action has been taken.

09-02 74.2L8 During our contract orovision tffi
exceotions: a) One (1) contract did not include provisions compliance with

comoliance with Energv Policv and Conservation Act; c) One (1) contract
did not include a orovision for comoliance with the Cooeland "Anti-

with 'Eoual Emolovment Oooortunitv"; e) One (1) contract did not lnclude
a orovision for comoliance with the Sections 103 and 1O7 of the Contract
Work Hours and Safetv Standards Act: fl one (1) contract did not include a
provision for retention of all reouired records for three 13) vears; g) One (1)
contract did not include a orovision for compliance with ,,Clean Air Act and

Full corrective action has been taken.

access to GAO or other federal aEencv to books. documents. etc.

o9-03 74.471
oarticioant files. The followinE summarize the deficiencies found: a) One
(1) oarticioant admitted during fiscal vear 2008-2009 was not found on
the Waitinq List. b) ln two (2) of the files. the reasonable rent
determination were nol uodated. c) Three (3) lnsoection Checklist form
were not marked as Pa

7A

During our Davis Bacon Act test. we veiified three l3t construction
proiects: we found the followins excenfinns. ^) ln ^na /1\ ^^c6 rh6
contractor was not informed in the orocurement nro.ecc ^f thF
reouirements for Davis Bacon Act. b) ln one (1) case. the contract did not
have the orovision for .omnlirnnp with ft^vic Fl^^^^ l^+ ^\ rh iu/^ /.\

Water Act: h) One {1) contracl di.l not in.lrrrlr a hrdviei^n f^r drin}ind



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF CIDRA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEARS AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original
Finding
Number

CFDA Cu rent Status of Prior YeaI Aud it Federal awa rd Findings ' Part lll Find ings
(As required by OIUB Cncular A-133)

No corrective action was taken. See current year finding number 11-03

were corrected.
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